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Notice of Annual General Meeting

RREFASES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT an annual general meeting (the
"Meeting”) of China Outdoor Media Group Limited (the “Company”) will be
held at Unit 1803, 18/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre, No. 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai,

ZRETEPIIMEBEEERAR([ARF])ET

it

- F+—A=TBELFT—REREEE

BT EEEI0ITIRER L 181803 ERITRE

Hong Kong on 30 November 2012, at 11:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries and the reports of the directors (the “Directors”)
and independent auditor of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2012.

By Order of the Board
Wong Pik Kwan

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 27 September 2012
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Registered office:
Unit 1803, 18/F., Sun Hung Kai Centre
No. 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Notes:

(1

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint one or
more proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a
member of the Company.

In order to be valid, the proxy form completed in accordance with the instructions
set out therein, together with the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under
which it is signed (or a notarially certified copy of that power or authority), must be
deposited at the registered office of the Company situated at Unit 1803, 18/F., Sun
Hung Kai Centre, No. 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours
before the time appointed for the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

This form of proxy must be signed by you or your attorney duly authorised in writing
or, in the case of a corporation, must be under its seal or under the hand of an officer
or attorney duly authorised.

In the case of joint holders, the vote of the sender who tenders a vote, whether in
person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint
holders, and for this purpose, seniority will be determined by the order in which the
names stand in the register in respect of the joint holding.

The proxy need not be a member of the Company but must attend the Meeting and
at any adjournment thereof in person to represent you.
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Directors and Senior Management’s Biographies

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WANG Gang, aged 40, was appointed as executive director and
chairman of the board of the Company in May 2011. Mr. Wang graduated
from Hangzhou University. He current serves as the vice president of Zhejiang
Daily Press Group, chairman of board of directors of Zhejiang Join-Home Media
Co., Limited and member of the Party Committee. Mr. Wang has also served as
the deputy chairman of board of directors of Today Morning Express Company
Limited, chief editor of Today Morning Express, president of the Wenzhou
Branch of Zhejiang Daily, vice department head of Science, Education and
Sanitation News Department of Zhejiang Daily and vice department head of
Economic News Department of Zhejiang Daily News Centre.

Mr. TSUI Wing Cheong, Sammy, aged 47, was appointed as executive
director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in April 2011. He has
worked in media management and advertising over 21 years and has served as
the group chief executive officer of BMA Investment Limited, chief operating
officer of Sing Tao News Corporation Limited, chief executive officer of Sing
Tao Publishing Group Limited and publisher of South China Media Limited.
He is the founder of “auto22.com” which used to be held by a company
then known as New World Cyberbase Limited, an online automobile trading
platform. Mr. Tsui is also a mentor in the Mentorship Program at the Journalism
and Media Studies Center of the University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Zhu Defu, aged 49, was appointed as executive director of the
Company in April 2011. He obtained a Master Degree in Chinese Language
and Literature from Sun Yat-sen University. Mr. Zhu is currently serving as
the general manager and publisher of a weekly magazine, namely “Taobao
Tianxia”. Mr. Zhu is also the vice president of Alibaba Group and general
manager of Alibaba’s multimedia business department and editor-in chief of
China Yahoo. Mr. Zhu has extensive experience in newspaper industry. Mr. Zhu
has served as the publisher and chief editor of “China Weekly”, vice publisher
and chief editor of a newspaper launched by People’s Daily, namely “Beijing
Times”, and chief editor of “Information Times”, launched by Guangzhou Press
Group, deputy editor-in-chief and deputy head of the News Center and the
team leader of legmen of “Nanfeng Daily” Publisher, deputy editor-in-chief
of “Nanfeng Dushi Daily” and editor and head of reporters of “Nanfeng Zhou
Mo"”. Mr. Zhu is also the M. Phil. Advisor of School of Journalism of University
of International Relations, deputy director of Public Policy Institute and M. Phil.
Advisor of School of Journalism and Communication of Peking University.

Ms. HU Wei, aged 35, was appointed as executive director of the Company in
March 2011. Ms. Hu graduated from Zhejiang University, she currently serves
as the manager of Zhejiang Daily Media Holding Group (Hong Kong) Limited
and the director and general manager of Zhejiang Join-Home Media Co.,
Limited. Prior to Zhejiang Join-Home Media Co., Limited, Ms. Hu acted as the
department head of Business Development Department of Qianjiang Group,
and have worked in Qingjiang Evening News as a reporter.
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Directors and Senior Management’s Biographies

EENEREEERE

Mr. LAU Chi Yuen, Joseph, aged 41, was appointed as executive
director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in November 2007
and Chairman of Nomination Committee in July 2008. Mr. Lau has resigned
as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in April 2011. To comply
with the amendments to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited which was effective on 1 April
2012, Mr. Lau ceased to be the chairperson of the Nomination Committee
in March 2012. Mr. Lau has about 11 years’ experience in corporate finance
transactions and investments, and managerial position involving listed and
non-listed companies in Hong Kong. He has now carrying out business in
media industry. He obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
(Finance) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1995 and a Bachelor
of Electronic Engineering in Computer (Hons) from the City University of Hong
Kong in 1993. He is an executive director and chairman of Luxey International
(Holdings) Limited (formerly known as China Post E-Commerce (Holdings)
Limited) which is a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. LU Liang, aged 50, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company in June 2002. Mr. Lu attained a Bachelor of Science in Computer
Science from the Harbin University of Science and Technology and a Master’s
Degree in Management of Information System from the Harbin Institute of
Technology. He had worked in China Great Wall Industry Corporation, an
affiliate of China National Space Administration in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"). He has over 15 years of extensive experience in
an information technology field in the PRC, specialising in development
of information technology and telecommunication network. Mr. Lu has
participated in property development projects in PRC, including planning and
design, construction, sales and marketing, and property management. He
has accumulated over more than 11 years valuable experience in property
development and management business.

Mr. TANG Lap Chin, Richard, aged 59, is the Chief Operating Officer of
the Company and was appointed as an executive director of the Company in
December 2009. He joined the Group in November 2007 upon his retirement
from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr.
Tang had completed 34 years of public service, including 3 years in the Fire
Services Department and 31 years with the Police Force. He was holding the
rank of Chief Inspector of Police before his retirement. During his service in
the Police Force, he had held key positions in different departments acquiring
extensive experience in the fields of investigation, operation, training, staff
relation, public relation and human resource management.
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Directors and Senior Management’s Biographies

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. GAO Hong Xing, aged 50, was appointed as non-executive director of
the Company in March 2011. Dr. Gao received a Doctoral degree from the
Zhejiang University. Dr. Gao is a senior Economist. From 2004-2007, he was
appointed as the independent director of Shahe Industrial Co., Limited, a
company listed on The Shenzhen Stock Exchange (“SZEx"). Dr. Gao is currently
the independent director of Hainan Strait Shipping Co., Limited, director of
The Great Wall Group Co., Limited (both companies are listed on SZEx), and
the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Hong Kong TV International Media
Group Limited. Prior to Hong Kong TV International Media Group Limited,
Dr. Gao has served as the director of Hong Kong Winalite Fund Management
Limited, director and president of China Lion Securities Co., Limited, deputy
general manager of Guotai Junan Securities (Shenzhen Branch). Dr. Gao also
held various senior management positions at a number of State-owned banks
and securities companies.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHENG Kwong Choi, Alexander, aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in December 2003. He
was the Business Development Manager of New York Life Insurance Worldwide
Limited. He had been appointed the Managing Director of Sky Fortune Travel
and the Assistant Manager—Japan Project of Hong Kong Tourist Association.

Mr. CHENG Sheung Hing, aged 64, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in December 2003. Mr. Cheng was
awarded a Bachelor Degree in Economic by the Beijing Economic College. He
specialised in the field of foreign exchange in the PRC for over 12 years and
his authorities on economic and foreign exchange was fully recognised when
he had been appointed the Deputy director of the office of the PRC Foreign
Exchange Management Bureau, the Director of non-trade Bureau (32 2 & &
), the Director of Inspection Bureau (I8 &z iz &) and a senior economist, at
around 1989.

Ms. Tay Sheve Li, aged 39, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director in November 2011. She received her Bachelor of Arts degree from
the University of Strathclyde in 1994 and Master of Applied Finance degree
from the University of Western Sydney in 2004. Ms. Tay has over 13 years
of experience in accounting and auditing. She was the president of finance
and capital management in Centron Telecom International Holding Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1155) from October 2010 to June 2011. She is currently an independent non-
executive director of Grand Concord International Holding Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 844). Ms. Tay
has been a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the fellow of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since 2002.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. WONG Pik Kwan, aged 32, has been appointed as the Company
Secretary in November 2011. Ms. Wong has over 9 years of auditing
experience. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Wong worked in one of
the Big 4 international accounting firms. She holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration (Honours) degree in Accounting and Finance from the
University of Hong Kong and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWED N

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group's total turnover amounted to
approximately HK$25.4 million (2011: HK$28.4 million), representing an
decrease of 10.5% compared with that in 2011. The total revenue for the year
was contributed from provision of media and advertising services.

For the year ended 30 June 2012, loss attributed to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$884.6 million (2011: HK$49.5 million). The increase in
loss was attributable to the impairment of goodwill arising from acquisition
of GMG Media Group Limited in 2010 (“Acquisition”) of HK$849.8 million.
Details of the Acquisition were disclosed in the circular of the Company dated
26 March 2010.

Media and advertising turnover and gross profit from the provision of media
and advertising services for the year ended 30 June 2012 was approximately
HK$25.4 million and HK$7.4 million respectively (2011: HK$28.4 million and
HK$14.5 million respectively). Turnover during the year was mainly contributed
by Shanghai Win Advertising Media Co., Ltd.. Due to the struggle global
economy as a result of the continued weakness of the US economy and
the debt crisis of several European nations, Chinese economic growth also
experience a slowdown. Accordingly, the customers demand were adversely
affected and the turnover and the gross profit for the year decreased.

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 30 June 2012 (2011: Nil).

PROSPECTS

The Group will continue its focus and effort to expand the media related
business and continue to explore potential investment opportunities in Hong
Kong and the PRC that can benefit the Group in the long term. The Group will
also place emphasis on the improvement of operational efficiency and cost
control in order to improve its financial performance and position.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

On 19 July 2011, 4 August 2011, 28 October 2011, 28 November 2011, 8
December 2011 and 12 December 2011, total of 5,699.7 million shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued for the conversion of Restated CB Jul 2010 (as
defined in note 28) with the principle amounts of HK$741.0 million.

As at 30 June 2012, the Group has net current assets of approximately
HK$47.4 million (2011: HK$73.8 million) and equity attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$453.7 million (2011: HK$703.2 million).
The decrease in equity attributable to owners of the Company as compared
with last year was mainly attributable to the net effect of the impairment of
goodwill of HK$849.8 million arising from acquisition of GMG Media Group
Limited and Restated CB Jul 2010 with principal amounts of HK$741.0 million
was converted to 5,699.7 million ordinary shares of the Company during the
year.

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had short-term borrowings of approximately
HK$2.6 million (2011: HK$2.6 million) and long term borrowings of
approximately HK$24,000 (2011: HK$627.6 million). The decrease in long
term borrowings was mainly attributable to the conversion of Restated CB Jul
2010 with the principle amounts of HK$740,964,000 during the year. Together
with the conversion of Restated CB Jul 2010 taken place during the year
ended 30 June 2011, the Restated CB Jul 2010 was fully converted as at 30
June 2012. The short term borrowings and the long term borrowings of total
HK$0.2 million bear interest at prevailing market rates. The remaining short
term borrowings of HK$2.4 million are interest-free. The gearing ratio of the
Group as at 30 June 2012, which was computed on the basis of the aggregate
borrowings divided by the amount of total assets, was 0.5% (30 June 2011:
47%).

As the Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi, the Group’s exposure to
exchange rate risk is limited. It is the Group’s treasury policy to manage its
foreign currency exposure only when its potential financial impact is material
to the Group. The Group will continue to monitor its foreign exchange position
and, if necessary, utilise hedging tools, if available, to manage its foreign
currency exposure.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 30 June 2012, the Group has pledged property, plant and equipment
with the net carrying amount of approximately HK$0.3 million (2011: HK$0.5
million) to secure the finance lease payables of approximately HK$0.2 million
(2011: HK$0.3 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWED N

CONTINGENT LIABILITY
As at 30 June 2012, the Group had contingent liability as possible claims
arising from indemnity related to a former subsidiary of approximately RMB6.1
million which was equivalent to HK$7.5 million (2011: RMB6.1 million which
was equivalent to HK$7.4 million).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group had no capital commitments as at 30 June 2012 and 2011.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group has 36 employees (including Directors) as at 30 June 2012 (2011:
37). The Group recruits and promotes individuals based on their performance
and development potential in the positions held. Remuneration package is
determined with reference to an employee’s performance and the prevailing
salary scale in the market. In addition, the Group adopts a share option scheme
for eligible employees (including Directors) to provide incentives to participants
for their contributions and continuing efforts to promote the interests of the
Group.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES OF THE GROUP’S SUBSIDIARIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2012 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 28.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the
year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on page 92.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND WARRANTS
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital, share options and
warrants during the year are set out in notes 29 and 30 to the financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association (“Articles”) or the laws of Hong Kong.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or its subsidiaries,
of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 30 June 2012.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity respectively.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 80.3% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 40.1%. Purchases from
the Group's five largest suppliers amounted for approximately 91.4% of the
total purchase for the year and purchase from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to approximately 36.7%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph

Mr. Lu Liang

Mr. Ng Yan (removed on 25 November 2011)
Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard

Ms. Hu Wei

Mr. Tsui Wing Cheong, Sammy

Mr. Zhu Defu

Mr. Wang Gang

Non-executive Director
Dr. Gao Hong Xing

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Tay Sheve Li (appointed on 26 November 2011)
Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander

Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing

Mr. Law Tai Yan (retired on 25 November 2011)

In accordance with Articles 94 and 102 (A) of the Company’s Articles, Messrs,
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, Tang Lap Chin, Richard, Tay Sheve Li, Cheng Kwong
Choi, Alexander and Cheng Sheung Hing shall retire at the 2012 annual
general meeting to be held on 30 November 2012, at 11:00 a.m. ("AGM") and
shall offer themselves for re-election as Directors of the Company at the AGM.

The terms of office of Messrs Tay Sheve Li, one of the independent non-
executive Directors, is for an initial term of two years which commenced on 26
November 2011 but is subject to retirement and re-election in accordance with
the Company’s Articles.

The terms of office of the remaining independent non-executive Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles.
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DIRECTORS (cont'd)

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Messrs.
Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander, Cheng Sheung Hing and Tay Sheve Li, and as
at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 5 to 7 to the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has paid a
consultancy fee of HK$0.7 million to H.G. Energy Investment Holding Company
Limited (“H.G."”). Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard is interested in the transaction to
the extent that he is also a beneficial shareholder of H.G..

Apart from the above, no other contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 30 June 2012, the interests and short positions of the Directors in the share
capital and underlying shares of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EERROREBRO 2EZRKXE

RZZ—ZFRA=TH BESRARFANHEE
AACEEREFRBEGRN([EHF BB ED )
FEXVER) AR R ARBI A P45 B AR EN AR ER
BEEFEAEGRIEIGFEZELM 2R R
KB RBARBETERTAESETESIH 2T
ETFUHNEARRREEHARIMBERAE ([H
Rz BmFOXRIAT

ARABREBRZHEFR
Number of Percentage of the
shares held Company'’s issued

personal interests share capital

REZRBHE RSN
Name of director EEHR 8 A RS EBRITRAEIL
Dr. Gao Hong Xing St EE L 230,769,230 2.13%
Long positions in share options of the Company: AATBRESFA

Number of options
directly beneficially owned

Name of director EEHR HEERBEENEREHS
Mr. Lu Liang BiedkE 3,200,000
Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard BRI A& 8,403,175

11,603,175

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2012, none of the Directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares of
the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Share Option Scheme” below, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debenture of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants for
their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interest of, the
Group. Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 30 to the financial
statements.

The Directors have estimated the values of the share options granted during
the year, calculated using the Binomial option pricing model (“Binomial
Model”) as at the date of grant of the options:

Number of options
outstanding as at

Lapsed during
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BRI BRI TE01E 4 EE -

sREA_EANETEEN( 'R Y
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Number of options

outstanding as at Theoretical value

1 July 2011 the year 30 June 2012 of share options

R=Z--%tHA-H RZZ-Z£XA=+H
Grantee ARA HRTRZBREHR FRRR HARTEZERERE BRENEREE
HK$
BT
Mr. Lu Liang BELE 3,200,000 - 3,200,000 1,048,640
Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard BRI 8,403,175 - 8,403,175 2,441,122
Consultants g 63,829,525 - 63,829,525 14,516,377
Other employees HiES 9,970,000 (4,070,000) 5,900,000 1,713,950
85,402,700 (4,070,000) 81,332,700 19,720,089

The Binomial Model is a generally accepted method of valuing options. The
measurement dates used in the valuation calculations were the dates on which
the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the Binomial Model are subject
to certain fundamental limitations, due to the subjective nature of and
uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of the expected future
performance input to the model, and certain inherent limitations of the model
itself.

The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions. Any changes to the variables used may materially affect the
estimation of the fair value of an option.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 30 June 2012, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued share
capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

FTERRREHEMA TR G R ABBER G
2 RE s

R-F——FXA=+A8  THEFARNERETR
A5% KA E 2 S E DR AR AR EE S RS
BIEPIEIB6HATE 2 RSB TMA -

Interest
Capacity and Interest under equity Percentage of
Notes Name nature of interest in shares derivative shareholding
Bt = e/ A BoRERME R 2 BRESTETA REBDL
1B T s
1 Fully Wealthy Inc. Beneficial Owner 3,000,932,163 - 27.67%
EREEA
1 Jiang Qi Hang Interest of controlled 3,000,932,163 - 27.67%

corporation
g NS 2o

Note 1: Fully Wealthy Inc. was wholly owned by Mr. Jiang Qi Hang. As such, Mr. Jiang Qi
Hang was also deemed to be interest in all the shares and underlying shares held
by Fully Wealthy Inc. under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2012, no person, other than the
Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions are set out in note 37(a) to the financial
statements. Except for the aforesaid, during the year and up to the date of
this report, no other connected transactions were entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a connected person as defined under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.
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AUDITOR

Martin C.K. Pong retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
Director

Hong Kong, 27 September 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) and the management
are committed to maintaining and ensuring high standards of corporate
governance as good corporate governance can safeguard the interests of all
shareholders and enhance corporate value. The Board continuously reviews
and improves the corporate governance practices and standards of the Group
form time to time to ensure that business activities and decision making
possesses are regulated in a proper manner.

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
throughout the year ended 30 June 2012, except for the deviation from
provision A.4.1 of the Code.

Pursuant to A.4.1 of the Code, independent non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election while all directors should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Under the
period of review, two out of the three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander and Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing, were
not appointed for a specific term but they are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at AGM in line with the Company’s Articles of Association (the
"Articles”). As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure the Company’s corporate governance practices are no
less exacting than those in the Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s strategic planning and
development, and for determining the objectives, strategic and policies of the
Group while delegating day-to-day operations of the Group to management.
Besides, each member of the Board is expected to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs and ensure that the Board acts in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

As at 30 June 2012, the Board comprises eleven members including, Mr.
Wang Gang as chairman of the Board, Mr. Tsui Wing Cheong, Sammy as
chief executive officer of the Company, Mr. Zhu Defu, Ms. Hu Wei, Mr. Lau
Chi Yuen, Joseph, Mr. Lu Liang and Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard as executive
Directors, Dr. Gao Hong Xing as non-executive Director and Mr. Cheng Kwong
Choi, Alexander, Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing and Ms. Tay Sheve Li as independent
non-executive Directors. One of the three independent non-executive Directors
possesses appropriate professional accounting qualifications and financial
management expertise, which complies with the requirement of the Listing
Rules. Details of their respective experiences and qualifications are included in
the "Directors and Senior Management’s Biographies” section of this annual
report.

The Directors have been informed of the requirement under the code provision
A.6.1 of the Code regarding continuous professional development. Details of
how each Director complies with such requirement for the year ending 30 June
2013 will be set out in the corporate governance report in the 2013 annual
report of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont'd)
The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors ensure the Board accounts for the
interests of all shareholders and that all issues are considered in an objective
manner. The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from the three independent non- executive Directors and as at the date of this
report still considers them to be independent.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business, family
relationship among the members of the Board as at 30 June 2012. All of them
are free to exercise their individual judgement.

BOARD MEETINGS

For the year ended 30 June 2012, there were 28 board meetings held to discuss
the Group’s development strategies, investment projects and the operational
and financial performance of the Group. The attendance of the Directors at the
Board meetings is as follows:

TEERRE

BEEzgwm
ARAFIEAHESEREABERHEENEERS
RS ETRE

BYFNTEETRRESTSAMERRNFNDEE
RARBREEZEEMEEE - ARABERE=2
UFERITEFNFEBLMERE - URREER
ARETEERDEBIAL -

BARAMMAM RZZ—-FXA=+H &EF
BB ZEBENTE  EBRFREE - BERS
B A RITEEEA I -

EExegl

HE-_Z——-FAZ+THLEFE  HET=TN
REEEEE  UIRAEENEERE  REHE
BEREERVMERE ZEEHEEFSSEINER
LENNE

Number of

attendance
HERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph B RSE A 25/28
Mr. Lu Liang Bt 7/28
Mr. Ng Yan (removed on 25 November 2011) SMEER_Z—F+—A-_1+HAZERER) 0/28
Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard I A& 28/28
Ms. Hu Wei ik Lo 6/28
Mr. Tsui Wing Cheong, Sammy EXE%AE 4/28
Mr. Zhu Defu KERNEE 7128
Mr. Wang Gang FaxE 7128
Non-executive Director BUKHITES
Dr. Gao Hong Xing EEEET 7/28
Independent non-executive Directors BIUKHITES
Ms. Tay Sheve Li (appointed on 26 November 2011) BMEXLZLT(RZE—F+—F =+ BEZT) 2/28
Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander B S A 12/28
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing EREERE Se 11/28
Mr. Law Tai Yan (retired on 25 November 2011) BEREGE(RN_E—F+—A=-+HABRTE) 3/28

The company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) of the Company assists the
Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable
rules and regulations are followed. The Company Secretary also keeps detailed
minutes of each meeting, which are available to all Directors for inspection. A
draft of board minutes are circulated to all Directors for their comments and
approved as soon as practicable after the board meetings.
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BOARD MEETINGS (cont'd)

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information, and they can
ask for further information or retain independent professional advisors if
necessary. They also have unrestricted access to the advice and service of the
Company Secretary, who is responsible for providing Directors with board
papers and related materials and ensuring that board procedures are followed.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder of
the Company or Director arise, the matter is discussed in an actual meeting,
as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution. Independent non-
executive Directors with no conflict of interest are present at meeting dealing
with conflict issues. Board committees of the Company, including the audit,
remuneration and nomination committees of the Company, all follow the
applicable practices and procedures used in board meetings for committee
meetings.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully recognizes that the respective role of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer should be distinct and separated. Mr. Wang Gang
is the chairman of the Board and is responsible for leadership to the Board to
ensure that the Board works effectively and all important issues are discussed
in a timely manner while Mr. Tsui Wing Cheong, Sammy is the chief executive
officer of the Company and is responsible for managing the business of
the Group and leading the management team to implement strategies and
objectives formulated by the Board. A clear division of responsibilities at the
Board level has been maintained to entail a balance of power and authority.

DIRECTORS’ TERMS OF APPOINTMENTS AND
RE-ELECTION

In accordance with Article 102(A), one-third of the Directors, shall retire from
office by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company.

Article 94 provides that Directors appointed either to fill a causal vacancy or
as an addition to the board shall hold office only until the following annual
general meeting after their appointment, and shall be subject to re-election by
the shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules for securities transactions by Directors. All the Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiries made by the Company, that they have
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout
the year ended 30 June 2012.

The Company has adopted the same Model Code for securities transactions by
employees of the Company who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code by the relevant employees
of the Company was noted by the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced assessment of the
Group's performance and prospects. It is also responsible for preparing
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the Group’s financial
position on a going concern basis and other price-sensitive announcements
and financial disclosures. Management provides the Board with the relevant
information it needs to discharge these responsibilities.

The responsibilities of the auditor to the shareholders are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 26 and 27.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of the
Company was established on 20 December 2005 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Code which are available on the respective
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The principal responsibilities
of the Remuneration Committee include formulation of the remuneration
policy, review and recommending to the Board the annual remuneration policy
of the individual executive Directors and members of senior management.
Meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall be held at least once a year. At
30 June 2012, the Remuneration Committee comprised two independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander and Ms. Tay Sheve Li
who is also the chairperson of the Remuneration Committee and one executive
Director, Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard. For the year ended 30 June 2012, 4
meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee mainly to review the
annual remuneration of the Directors and to approve the adoption of the terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee for the year. The attendance is as
follows:
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27 BVE N

Number of

attendance

HERE

Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander B A a/4
Ms. Tay Sheve Li (appointed on 26 November 2011) MEXLZL(RZE—F+—FZ+BEZT) 1/4
Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard LA A& 4/4
Mr. Law Tai Yan (retired on 25 November 2011) BEREE(RN-_E—F+—A=-+HARTE) 3/4
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee (the”Nomination Committee”) of the Company
was established on 7 July 2008 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code which are available on the respective websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. It is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on nominations, appointment of Directors and Board succession.
The Nomination Committee selects candidates for directorship with reference
to the candidate’s professional knowledge, industry experience, personal
ethics and integrity, and time commitments. During the selection process, the
Nomination Committee may consider referrals or engage external recruitment
professionals when necessary. Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall
be held at least once a year and as and when required. At 30 June 2012,
the Nomination Committee comprised three independent non- executive
Directors, Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander, Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing and
Ms. Tay Sheve Li who is the chairperson of the Nomination Committee and
one executive Director, Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph. For the year ended 30 June
2012, 4 meetings were held by the Nomination Committee mainly to review
the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee and to approve the
appointment of a new independent non-executive director during the year. The
attendance is as follow:
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Number of

attendance

HERE

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph BEiRSEE 4/4
Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander BEA Sk 4/4
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing B RR S A 4/4
Ms. Tay Sheve Li (appointed on 26 November 2011) BEFHZLE(R_E—F+— A -+ BEZT) 1/4
Mr. Law Tai Yan (retired on 25 November 2011) BERELE(N-_BE—F+—A=-+HARTE) 3/4
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has had an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the
Company since 2004 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code which are available on the respective websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. It is responsible for reviewing the Group’s financial reporting,
internal controls and making recommendations to the Board. At 30 June 2012,
the Audit Committee comprised three independent non-executive Directors,
Ms. Tay Sheve Li, Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander and Mr. Cheng Sheung
Hing. Ms. Tay Sheve Li is the chairperson of the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 30 June 2012, 5 meetings were held by the Audit
Committee mainly to review the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, to
review the financial performance of the Company for the year ended 30 June
2011 and for the six months ended 31 December 2011 and the internal control
system. The attendance is as follows:
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Number of

attendance
HERE
Ms. Tay Sheve Li (appointed on 26 November 2011) BEFRMZL(R-_E——F+— A=+ BEEE) 2/5
Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander B A 5/5
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing B B ST A 5/5
Mr. Law Tai Yan (retired on 25 November 2011) BERGE(RN-_E—E+—A=-+HABREMTE) 3/5
AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION G
A summary of fees for audit services is as follows: EZRBHERBMAT
2012
—E—_—F
HK$
BT
Audit services: BRI
Audit of the annual financial statements BEZFEIERE 475,000

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
with its written terms of reference as set out below:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees of the Company and Directors;
and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibilities for introducing and continuously
maintaining sound and effective internal control systems of the Group
and reviews its adequacy and effectiveness. It is committed to review and
implement effective and sound internal controls systems to safeguard
shareholders’ interests. The Board has delegated to the management
with defined structure and limited authority, to conduct reviews on and
maintenance of all material controls including proper financial and accounting
records, operational and compliance and risk management functions as well as
the implementation of the internal control system to ensure compliance with
relevant legislations and regulations.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group. The internal control systems will be reviewed on an
ongoing basis by the Board in order to make it practical and effective.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Pursuant to the amendments to the Listing Rules which is effective on 1
April 2012, our Company Secretary has been informed of the requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules to take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in each financial year and her compliance with such
requirement for the year ending 30 June 2013 will be set out in the corporate
governance report in the 2013 annual report of the Company.

THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY MEETING AND PROCEDURES

FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 67 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary general
meetings of the Company shall be convened on requisition, as provided by
Section 113 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), or in default, may be convened by the requisitionists.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents
for the year ended 30 June 2012.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant information to
shareholders in a timely manner. Annual and interim reports offer
comprehensive operational and financial performance information to
shareholders and the annual general meeting of the Company provides
a forum for shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. The
Company regards the annual general meeting of the Company as an important
event and all Directors, senior management and external auditors make an
effort to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to address
shareholders’ queries. All the shareholders of the Company are given a
minimum of 20 days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual general
meeting of the Company. The Company supports the Code’s principle to
encourage shareholders’ participation. The Company has also complied with
the requirements concerning voting by poll under the Listing Rules. Details of
the poll voting procedures and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll
are included in circulars to shareholders of the Company dispatched by the
Company where applicable.
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PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRES MAY BE PUT TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders of the Company may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary by mail at Unit 1803,
18th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
The Company Secretary is responsible for forwarding communications to the
Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company, where appropriate,
to answer the shareholders’ questions.

PROCEDURES FOR NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS FOR
ELECTION

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person for
election as a Director are available and accessible on the Company's website at
http://www.comg.com.hk.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA OUTDOOR MEDIA GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Outdoor
Media Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 28 to 91,
and company statements of financial position as at 30 June 2012, and the

which comprise the consolidated

consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2012,
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Martin C.K. Pong & Company
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 September 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 30 June 2012 BE-—ZE——FXA=1+HIFE

Notes 2012 2011
MteE —E——F —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
Revenue Uy & 8 25,439 28,410
Cost of services RGN (18,045) (13,903)
Gross profit EF 7,394 14,507
Other income PN 9 171 275
Impairment of goodwill BHERE 19 (849,835) -
Administrative and other operating TEREMEERY
expenses (34,404) (31,229)
Finance costs BB A AR 10 (6,910) (35,603)
Loss before tax BB BIEE 11 (883,584) (52,050)
Income tax expense SR X 14 (817) (1,297)
Loss for the year FAEE (884,401) (53,347)
Attributable to: BT AL R :
Owners of the Company KNEHEB A (884,556) (49,544)
Non-controlling interests JEPE AR 155 (3,803)
(884,401) (53,347)
Loss per share attributable to AATEBERE
ordinary equity holders of BEEAEWN
the Company EREE 17

Basic and diluted ARG HK(9.43) cents;&l HK(2.08) centsi#& il
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEZHEBAR

For the year ended 30 June 2012 HE-—E——F X XA=1HILFE

2012 2011
—E-=fF —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Loss for the year FREE (884,401) (53,347)
Other comprehensive income HttZEBA
Exchange differences on translation of REGINETSFTE £ 2
foreign operations 5 Z5E 762 1,583
Other comprehensive income FREMEEmHRA
for the year, net of tax HIBR® E 762 1,583
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZHEWKALEE (883,639) (51,764)
Attributable to: BT ALHER:
Owners of the Company NNEHER A (883,794) (47,961)
Non-controlling interests SEIE AR R A 155 (3,803)

(883,639) (51,764)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

At30June 2012 R=ZT—=F,A=+H

Notes 2012 2011
Hat —E-—F —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE FHET
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 18 653 1,324
Goodwill FEE 19 402,393 1,252,228
Club membership i 20 150 150
Interests in associates i /N ol 22 - -
403,196 1,253,702
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables, prepayments, deposits EWE S - BAAFKE -
and other receivables & RH M ERGRIE 23 55,940 51,687
Cash and bank balances e NMIRITEF 24 16,440 35,660
72,380 87,347
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables, other payables BB S - HbERRIE
and accruals MEETE A 25 17,977 7,363
Other borrowings Hibg & 26 2,401 2,401
Finance lease payables JEfT R EFH E AR 27 151 151
Tax payable FEAIFRIR 4,472 3,660
25,001 13,575
Net current assets REBEEZE 47,379 73,772
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 450,575 1,327,474
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Finance lease payables R mERERIEA 27 24 175
Convertible loan notes R EREE 28 - 627,464
24 627,639
NET ASSETS EERE 450,551 699,835
Capital and reserves BAERREE
Share capital ik 29 108,435 51,438
Reserves i 31(a) 345,282 651,718
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARQRI#A ARE(RREZS 453,717 703,156
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR = (3,166) (3,321)
TOTAL EQUITY AR 450,551 699,835
Approved and authorised for issued by the board of directors on 27 September CHEFEN_T——_FNA -+ AZRRE
2012. g -

Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph

2EE

Director

BEF

Tang Lap Chin, Richard

AT
Director

EF
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Statement of Financial Position

B REAR AR

At30June 2012 R=FT—=FA=+H

Notes 2012 2011
MtaE —E——F —ZE——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BERZRE 18 - 274
Club membership it 20 150 150
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE 21 400,000 -
400,150 424
Current assets REBEE
Due from subsidiaries i NS B 21 34,941 1,302,451
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE - Re &k
other receivables Hib gz 23 284 330
Cash and bank balances BE NMIRITEF 24 314 382
35,539 1,303,163
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals HAb R RIE R ETER 25 2,267 2,427
Other borrowings HiiEE 26 1,523 1,523
3,790 3,950
Net current assets REBEETFE 31,749 1,299,213
Total assets less current liabilities #EERRSAE 431,899 1,299,637
Non-current liability EnBEE
Convertible loan notes AR EREE 28 - 627,464
NET ASSETS EERE 431,899 672,173
Capital and reserves R R &
Share capital %N 29 108,435 51,438
Reserves & 31(b) 323,464 620,735
EQUITY R 431,899 672,173

Approved by the board of directors on 27 September 2012.

Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph

2EE

Director

EBEE

EREFEN T ——FhLA=-+tH#Z-

Tang Lap Chin, Richard
BB A
Director

EZE
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China Outdoor Media Group Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2012 BE-—ZE——FXA=1+HIFE

=

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADARRAEL
Share- Convertible
based loan notes Non-
Share Share  payment  Warrants equity  Exchange Acumulated controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve component  reserve losses Total interests equity
HRHA
EBAR  JREZ TRRER
Bx  RHEE b2 ] R REEERS ELRE  ZitEE 88 FERER LR
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tin Tin Tin TR TiEn TR TR TR TR ThRL
At 1 July 2010 R-F-FE13-H 11,493 826,671 20,446 600 7 382 (792,466 67,153 (1,365) 65,788
Loss for the year EhgR - - - - - - (d95M) (954 (383 (53340)
Other comprehensive income for the year: SRR B2
Exchange differences on translation of RERNERAEL
foreign operations LERER - - - - - 1,583 - 1,583 - 1,583
Total comprehensive income for the year EREENAEE - - - - - 1,583 (49,544)  (47,961) (3803)  (51764)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 32) WE-FHBARM:232) 1,000 21,300 - - - - - 22,300 1,847 2147
Share issued upon exercise of warrants TERERRET IR 800 14,612 - 212) - - - 15,200 - 15,200
Share issued upon conversion of comvertible BT ARE RZEELT 2R
loan notes (note 28) (Hz28) 38,145 470,579 - - (90,748) - - 417,976 - 47976
Warrants lapsed during the year EREH 7 AREE - - - (250 - - 250 - - -
Share options lapsed during the year ER&HERE - - n3) - - - 73 - - -
Issue of convertible loan notes (note 28)  EATEREHZH(H:28) - - - - 0848 - - 08488 - 18488
Changes inequityfor the year EhERes 0945 506491 m) {462 137740 1583 W01 6%003  (195%) 63047
At30 June 2011 and 1 July 2011 RZZ-—F/A=TAR
“5-—%¢f-8 51438 1333162 20373 138 137,767 1965  (841,687) 703,156 (3321) 699,835
Loss for the year Epgi - - - - - - (B8455)  (884,556) 155 (884,401)
Other comprehensive income for theyear: — FREMZEUA -
Exchange differences on translation of REBNERAEE
foreign operations LEREE - - - - - 762 - 762 . 762
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ERZEMAEE - - - - - 760 (884,556)  (883,794) 155 (883,639)
Share issued upon conversion of comertible ¥ AT AR EHEEER 2 R
oan notes (note 26) (hi228) 56,997 15,125 - - (13776)) - - 634,355 - 634,35
Warrants lapsed during the year ERENZARES - - - (138 - - 138 - - -
Share options lapsed during the year EREH 2 ERE - - (653) - - - 653 - - -
Changes in equity for the year EfEazE 5,997 715125 (63) (138)  (137,767) 762 (883,765  (249439) 155 (249,284)
At30 June 2012 RZF-Z§7A=1A 108435 2,048,287 19,720 - - L07 (1725452) 453717 (3,166) 450,551
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 HE-—E——F X XA=1HILFE

Notes 2012 2011
M st —E-CfF —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax M Ei AT E 1R (883,584) (52,050)
Adjustments for: S RFIE B e
Finance costs BhE KA 10 6,910 35,603
Interest income FE A 9 (4) (5)
Depreciation E 11 295 383
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEME BEMREEBEBEZ
property, plant and equipment BB () 11 427 (61)
Impairment of prepayments, TENHIE - Re Rk
deposits and other receivables Hth JE W REIRE 11 13,776 2,278
Impairment of goodwill EERE 19 849,835 -
(12,345) (13,852)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables, JEWE Hk - T Z0E -
prepayments, deposits and other R R EAEKGKIE
receivables (g, m > (18,054) 26,620
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, FENEB S5 - B ENE L E
other payables and accruals HEARENOfd) 10,614 (7,874)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations && %% (FH) /EA R4S (19,785) 4,894
Income taxes paid ERPEH (66) (81)
Interest paid 2RFE (8) (27)
Interest element of finance lease rental  RVATREHE
payments FEEHD 10 (11) 9)
Net cash flows (used in)/from operating Q&% (ER), EEZ
activities RenEFH (19,870) 4,777
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZBHzHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of subsidiaries W R B A R 32 - 4,232
Interest received 2HFE 4 5
Purchases of items of property, plant BEME - BEL&EEE
and equipment (45) (178)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYE  BEKREES
property, plant and equipment FR{83E - 160

Net cash flows (used in)/from investing WEEES(RER) EEZ
activities REREFRE

(41)

4,219
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Notes 2012 2011
MteE —E——F —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REITECHERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT TS A - 15,200
New other borrowings raised EEENMEMER - 878
Repayment of other borrowings EBEREMEE - (172)
Capital element of finance lease rental  FEME B2 EAZLH
payments 33 (151) (125)
Net cash flows (used in)/ from financing EZZ8(ER) EEZ
activities ReREFE (151) 15,781
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN BeRZEFARESEEZCRS)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #nEEE (20,062) 24,777
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FIzREeRERKRSER
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 35,660 10,733
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ER& &) & 842 150
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FR2BEERERRSER
AT END OF YEAR 16,440 35,660
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReREFARLSEHZDHF
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances RE RIBITTEF 16,440 35,660
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 HE-—E——F X XA=1HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong as a company with
limited liability. The address of its registered office and principal place of
business is Unit 1803, 18th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2012. The financial statements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which
the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are
eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to the non-
controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance (effective from
1 January 2010 onwards).

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised HKFRSs

issued by the HKICPA that are relevant to its operations and effective

for its accounting year beginning on 1 July 2011. The adoption of the

new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these

financial statements, except as described below.

(a)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements
(as part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010)

The amendment to HKAS 1 clarifies that an entity may choose
to disclose an analysis of other comprehensive income by item in
the statement of changes in equity or in the notes to the financial
statements. In the current year, the Group elects to present the
analysis of each component of other comprehensive income in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definition of related
parties. As a result, the Group has re-assessed the identification of
related parties and concluded that the revised definition does not
have any material impact on the Group’s related party disclosures in
the current and previous period. The accounting policy for related
parties has been revised to reflect the changes in the definitions of
related parties under the revised standard. HKAS 24 (Revised) also
introduces modified disclosure requirements for government-related
entities. The adoption of the revised standard did not impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group because the Group is
not a government-related entity.

PR RAERT 2 BRI ELER]
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(a)

(b)
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 HE-—E——F X XA=1HILFE

4. SEMEERERZEEBMBREER

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that REFBWEANERERRPEA TS B
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements. BEARERMIE] RIS BB G RELE
a2

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
RUTBE#R 2%
M ERREXR
HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Government Loans 1 January 2013
BEABREENE1FUETR) BFFE —T-—=%-A—-H
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 1 January 2013
BEMBREEUNETRERTA) RE-HAHCHEEREHER —T-=%—-f—H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2015
BEHBRE LR EH EHITA —Z-hFE—-HA—-H
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013
BB BREERFE 105 HEIBHE —“T-=%—-HA—H
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013
BB BREERFE157 HEZH —Z-=%-HF—H
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013
BEHBRE D125 BEREMERZ #am —Z-=f5—-H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and Disclosure 1 January 2013
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance
BEHBREERE10% - HEIBHE  RATHRBEEREME R #Eq - #EES —ZT-=%5—-H—H
BEMBREENENHL
BRPHREE AFE 125827 R
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013
BB BREERE135 2 FlEsE —“T-=%—-HA—H
Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle 1 January 2013
BEEMBREEUZETA TEENFE - —FHHE BN BHEERC FREAE —T-—=%-A—-H
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income 1 July 2012
ERGHEREIRUETR) 2HEMEERZER —T——f+A—H
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets 1 January 2012
BEREGENE 127 (BFTR) BREHE - WEEREE —“T-——%—-A—-H
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits 1 January 2013
BEBEHENEISR(ZE—F) ESEH —T—=%—-R—-H
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013
ERGHERNE2IR(ZE——F) BUHBHRE A
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2013
BEGHENE28H(ZT——F) RELRAREERFAZKE “ZT-=%5—-H—H
HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 1 January 2014
BB ERNEI25 (BFTK) HifeHEEREHER —T-HmF—-A—H
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine 1 January 2013
R (ERMBRERBEES) BABSLEERZ HRAA —“T-=%—-HA—H
—REF2058
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact AEB SIS KB BB BRELE
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application but it is not BIA A S EE 1 - EIREBEE
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed ZEEHAEBGFFETERT EEERELSE
review has been completed whether these new and revised HKFRSs would MR RSB BB HREER ST HEE S
have any significant impact on its results of operations and financial BRVBRAENEAZETKARCENR

position.

ko
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company, directly or indirectly,
controls more than half of its voting power or issued share capital or
controls the composition of its board of directors; or over which the
Company has a contractual right to exercise a dominant influence
with respect to that entity’s financial and operating policies.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-controlled
entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of generally not
less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s interests in an associate is stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
The Group's share of the post—acquisition results and reserves of
an associate is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves respectively. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
an associate is included as part of the Group’s investment in the
associate and is not individually tested for impairment.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether it
measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net asset. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

5. TESTHREE

(a)

(b)

(c)
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)
(c) Business combinations and goodwill (cont’d)

5. FESHBEBE@)
() ¥BEHREEW@®)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition date through
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed
to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement either in
profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is classified as equity, it will not remeasured.
Subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. In instances
where the contingent consideration does not fall within the scope of
HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 30 June. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont’d)

(c)

(d)

Business combinations and goodwill (cont’d)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of
in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial assets
and goodwill), the assets recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the assets or cash-generating
units value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the period
in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the period in
which it arises.

5. FESHBEBE@)

(c)

(d)
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont’d)
(e) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

5. FESHBEBE@)
(e) ME - BMERRBURITE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred
after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates then accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements HEMERE

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment Rfh - RERPAETRME
Computer equipment BIGER

Motor vehicles AE

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont’d)
(f) Club membership

Club membership acquired separately is measured on initial

recognition at cost.

Club membership with indefinite useful life is tested for impairment
annually and is not amortised. The useful life of the club membership
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Club membership with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the club membership may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for the club
membership with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each

financial year end.

(g) Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases are included in property,
plant and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs
of such leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide

a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature
are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their

estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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5. FESHBEBE@)

POLICIES (cont'd)
(h) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
loans and receivables. The Group determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

The Group's financial assets include trade receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables and cash and
bank balances.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)
(h) Financial assets (cont’d)
Derecognition of financial assets (cont’d)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cashflows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and

obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that

the Group could be required to repay.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and
that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with

defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in

a collective assessment of impairment.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

()

()

Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (cont’d)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
income statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
loans and borrowings. The Group determines the classification of its
financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the
case of loans and borrowings, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
other borrowings and finance lease payables.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont’d)
(j) Financial liabilities (cont’d)

Subsequent measurement

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Convertible loan notes

The component of convertible loan notes that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial
position, net of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible loan
notes, the fair value of the liability component is determined using
a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible loan note; and this
amount is carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of
the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised
and included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the
liability and equity components of the convertible loan notes based
on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components
when the instruments are first recognised.

(k) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

()

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(m) Fair value of financial instruments

(n)

(o)

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs. For
financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair value is
determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques
include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to
the current market value of another instrument which is substantially
the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted
as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont’d)
(p) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured

reliably, on the following bases:

(i) outdoor media advertising and media related service income,

when the relevant services have been rendered; and

(ii) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net

carrying amount of the financial asset.

(q) Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at
the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an

external valuer using valuation method.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of

that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service

conditions are satisfied.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)
(q) Share-based payment transactions (cont’d)

(r)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont’d)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Other employee benefits (cont’d)

Pension scheme (cont’d)

The employees of the Group's subsidiary which operates in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of it
payroll to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the income statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with borrowing of funds.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

(t)

Income tax (cont’'d)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

— when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

— in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

—  when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

— in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont’d)

(t)

(u)

Income tax (cont’'d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are taken to the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. The gain or
loss arising on retranslation of a non-monetary item is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation differences on item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollars. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and
their income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the income statement.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont’d)
(u) Foreign currencies (cont’d)
Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

(v)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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6.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group'’s financial statements requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

(a) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This required an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 30 June 2012
was HK$402,393,000 (2011: HK$1,252,228,000). Further details are
set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

(b) Impairment loss on trade receivables, prepayments,

deposits and other receivables

The Group makes impairment loss on trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts requires the
use of judgments and estimates.
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7. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Reportable segment

From the perspective of the Group’s senior management, it is
considered that assessment of operating performance is focused
on the Group as a whole for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment. Therefore management considers the
Group has one reporting segment i.e. the media and advertising
business.

Reconciliation of segment information to the information presented
in the financial statements has not been presented, as the reconciling
items are considered to be immaterial.

Geographical information

No geographical information is shown as the revenue from external
customers and non-current assets of the Group are substantially
derived from activities or located in the People’'s Republic of China
(the "PRC").

Information about major customers

Revenue from operations of approximately HK$10,198,000,
HK$4,459,000 and HK$3,790,000 (2011: HK$6,059,000 and
HK$4,145,000) were derived from three (2011: two) single customers
from the media and advertising business segment which contributed
10% or more to the Group’s revenue for the year ended 30 June
2012.

8. REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the value of
services rendered during the year.

9. OTHER INCOME

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:
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9. HfbrA

HWAREmD M

2012 2011

—E-=F —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FET

Bank interest income RITHFLEHA 4 5
Gain on disposal of items of property, LEWE  BEK

plant and equipment FBIEE 2w - 61

Foreign exchange gains, net SN W 23558 13 209

Sundry income HIBBA 154 -

171 275
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10. FINANCE COSTS 10. ME A
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: RMERADWAT -
2012 2011
—E--F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Bank charges RITEA 8 17
Interest on convertible loan notes AHRERRRZHAE 6,891 35,567
Interest on other borrowings ARAFABEEE 2 H A
wholly repayable within five years BEZFE - 10
Interest on finance lease MEREZFE 11
6,910 35,603

11.LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

11.RBAIE R

ANEE 2 BRBATBETENR(FTA) TFE

17
2012 2011
—E--F —T——%F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Depreciation nE 295 383
Minimum lease payments under operating lease HATBERIBLEHLOE
in respect of: 2 HIEEEHIE
- Land and buildings — T REF 1,207 1,982
- Office equipment —WAERE 18 18
- Outdoor billboards —PINEER 17,707 12,698
18,932 14,698
Auditors’ remuneration HERE S 475 400
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ EEBFIML
remuneration) (note 12) (BEESMS) (Wit12)
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind —¥e  REREDRE 3,998 4,415
— Retirement benefit schemes contributions — RICEHE B 116 136
4,114 4,551
Impairment of prepayments, deposits and TBRFHIA - e REA Y
other receivables FIERE 13,776 2,278
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, LEWE - BEMEEEE
plant and equipment BB (M) 427 (61)
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12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 12.E5He
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing ARE FTRBRESRTHEAIE 161 1GHE
Rules and section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as ZERNESHEWT -
follows:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
HE-E-_F and benefits schemes
Year ended 30 June 2012 RNAZTRHLEEE Fees inkind contributions Total
=4 BHEEN
ne RENFS g e wct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR TER T
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph ABEEE - - - -
Mr. Lu Liang BfEEAE - 187 - 187
Mr. Ng Yan** RRSFEHE** 10 - - 10
Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard HaaikE - - - -
Ms. Hu Wei Mgt - - - -
Mr. Tsui Wing Cheong, Sammy BEXERE - - - -
Mr. Zhu Defu REMEE - - - -
Mr. Wang Gang Faks - - - -
10 187 - 197
Non-executive Director FUTES
Mr. Gao Hong Xing SHERE - - - -
Independent Non-executive BIYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander BES %% 36 - - 36
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing BEELE 36 - - 36
Ms. Tay Sheve Li* BEHz L+ 108 - 5 113
Mr. Law Tai Yan** BERG e~ 15 - - 15
195 - 5 200

205 187 5 397
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12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (cont’d) 1R.E5Me @
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
H$E-_T——F and benefits schemes
Year ended 30 June 2011 NAZTHLEFE Fees in kind contributions Total
e 2R RIKER
e REMHz= BE 5 et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FHL THIL THL
Executive Directors HITEZ
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph ABREE - - - -
Mr. Lu Liang BREEE - 360 - 360
Mr. Ng Yan RREE 24 - - 24
Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard Byupiks 5 - - 5
Ms. Hu Wei* [k G - - - _
Mr. Tsui Wing Cheong, Sammy* EXELEH - - - -
Mr. Zhu Defu* RE AL - - - -
Mr. Wang Gang* FaEA - - - -
29 360 - 389
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Gao Hong Xing* mHE R A - - - -
Independent Non-executive BUFTES
Directors
Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander BES %% 36 - - 36
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing BeELE 36 - - 36
Mr. Law Tai Yan BEREE 36 - - 36
108 - - 108
137 360 - 497

* Appointed during the relevant year
**  Retired or removed during the relevant year

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the years ended 30 June 2012 and 2011.

* RERFEEZRE
> RERFERTRERR

REBE-_E——ER_FE—FA=+HI
FE BMEACWNESHEXRERETAHS
Z&HE -
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The five highest paid employees during the year included no (2011: one)
director, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 12 above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining five (2011: four) non-
director, highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

B ISERAR MY RE

“ERAZTHLEFE

B.IEBRSHFHESR

FA - AEBLEEEFHESETITRBREE
B(ZZ2——F: %) FEMe=BEER
X128 c FR - EBRAR(ZT——
F OB FEFRSFMESE ZHMSEHIIN
T

2012 2011

—E——fF —T——%

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHEIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYHE 2,167 2,302
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RIREFE B R 38 48
2,205 2,350

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration
fell within the following bands is as follows:

e T T SEZFEFRSFHEEABN
T

Number of employees

EEAH
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——%F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,000/8 7T 5 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the five highest paid
individuals (including directors and other employees) as inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss to office (2011:
Nil).

R AREEMAEERSHEE (FEE
HLH AR B SN EEBS - AR S
A0 B8 52 058 22 L 5 o R (—
T8

14. INCOME TAX 14.FR 8%t

2012 2011
—E-——F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET

Current — Hong Kong BNER— B
Charge for the year FAZH - -
Underprovision in prior years BAEFEREBETE - 81
- 81

Current — the PRC BUER— Bl
Charge for the year FERLH 817 1,216
Total tax charge for the year FARIEZ LA 817 1,297
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14.

15.

INCOME TAX (cont'd)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.
No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for the year as the Group did
not generate any taxable profits arising in Hong Kong (2011: Nil).

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax, the applicable income
tax rate of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC is 25% (2011: 25%).

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax at the
statutory tax rate of 16.5% to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is
as follows:

14. Fi 8% (@)

EEFEHERFAREBELE 2 Bt R
S AIATH E16.5%(ZF——4F : 16.5% ) &t
g o AN AEBMIWEREBEETMERFE
Mo MRFALTEREENESHELBEZ
T——F ) o

RIERBEDEAERE - AEBLR AR K
BARZEAMEHEAE2S% (2T ——F :
25%) °

BEERE16.5% et E AN AR
MEMAY  BRERHERFE BRI 2H
BRaNR -

2012 2011

—E-——F —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

Loss before tax MRELAIEE (883,584) (52,050)

Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% BEEME16.5%TE 2 HIR (145,791) (8,588)

Underprovision in prior years WEFERETE - 81

Income not subject to tax AR (5,873) (39)

Expenses not deductible for tax ik 152,180 10,367

Unrecognised temporary differences AERL =5 9 18

Tax losses utilised from previous periods BATHMEDEABIEER (55) (1,278)

Tax losses not recognised RERTIEEE 69 323
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries N alE ke hpE= NI RN e

operating in the PRC a2 278 413

Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BAEEERBEFE 2 HEXH 817 1,297

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$126,020,000 (2011: HK$125,940,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset in respect of such losses
has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
All the tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely under current tax
legislation.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2012 includes a loss of HK$874,629,000 (2011:
HK$63,098,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company (note 31(b)).

15.

RBEHHEEER  AEBEEAHAREA
/& 18 #) 126,020,000 8 T ( =& — — & :
125,940,000/87T) - AL AEHEHEARIORH
F PR 2 M ARORBE LA TERT - SRt B R
BRERELRIBEE - RIFRITVOE - AN
T 5 1R 15 ] B IR B AE S o

ROFERAREER

HE_Z——"FRA=TRHILFEZERRA%E
EARGGABBREFENAR M BERERA
FR¥P 2 B8 874,629,000 (=T ——F :
63,098,000/ 7T)(Fif7E31(b)) °
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16. DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2012 (2011: Nil).

17.LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share amounts is based on the loss
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
of approximately HK$884,556,000 (2011: HK$49,544,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 9,379,966,000 (2011:
2,385,922,000) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts
presented for the years ended 30 June 2012 and 2011 in respect of a
dilution as the impact of the share options, warrants and convertible loan
notes outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share
amounts presented.

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. [R5

AAREFFRBENRE-F——FXA=
TRILFEZEARE(ZE——F : ) -

17. X 2P EBERESEABRLEERER

BRENGESEDNRFRAAA AL BRES
B ATE(LE184884,556,0008 T (- ——
F 149,544,000 L) RAFEEEHTEBR
hn4E 15 809,379,966,000 % ( — T — — 4 :
2,385,922,0000% )5t & -

A B ARITIEREARIE - SRARAE S AT IRARE K
ZRWAZSSRERERAEREEHE - )
WERBE-T——FR-_FT——F~ A=+
AEFEM2S 2 ORERAEBSEELA

B, o
i

18. 1% ~ MERRE

The Group
A48
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office Computer
improvements equipment equipment Motor vehicles Total
B 2ER
BENERE BAERE EMRE "E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TR TR T Tign
Cost BAE
At 1 July 2010 RZZ-TFLA-H 406 230 142 475 1,253
Additions RE - 5 - 624 629
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) WERBAR (Hi32) - 407 - - 407
Disposals HeE - - - (475) (475)
Exchange realignment JE 5 % - 30 - - 30
At 30 June 2011 and 1 July 2011 RZE-——FRA=t-8Ek
—Z——5+A-A 406 672 142 624 1,844
Additions NE - 9 36 - 45
Disposals e (406) (173) (142) - (721)
Exchange realignment JE 1 % - 6 - - 6
At 30 June 2012 R-E-ZEXA=1H - 514 36 624 1,174
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont'd)

18. W% - MERRE @)

The Group
KEE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office Computer
improvements equipment equipment Motor vehicles Total
B £BR
BENEEE BAERE BRE RE EH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk THT TEL TEL TR
Accumulated depreciation and RAWERAE
impairment
At 1 July 2010 R-F-FELA-A 2 45 7 357 500
Provided for the year FREE 81 126 26 150 383
Written back on disposals HEREE - - - (376) (376)
Exchange realignment B AR - 13 - - 13
At 30 June 2011 and 1 July 2011 RZE——F/~A=TER
—Z-——%tA-A 107 184 98 131 520
Provided for the year FREE 20 110 9 156 295
Written back on disposals HERERE (127) (63) (104) - (294)
At 30 June 2012 RZB--ExA=1H - 231 3 287 521
Net carrying amount REFE
At 30 June 2012 RZB--ExA=1H - 283 33 337 653
At 30 June 2011 RZE——FXA=TH 299 488 44 493 1,324

The net carrying amount of the Group’s motor vehicles held under finance

leases at 30 June 2012 amounted to HK$337,000 (2011: HK$493,000).

RZE——FXA=1+H " A£ERERER
E¥FAZARERMFEAR337,0008 (= —
—%F : 493,000/87T) °
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d) 18. % « BERRE @)
The Company
NS
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Computer
improvements equipment equipment Total
B HER
HEWEEE WAERE ER1E et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FAET FHT
Cost B E
At 1 July 2010, 30 June 2011 RZZ-S5+A-R-
and 1 July 2011 “E—ERAZTEE
I = 228 138 55 421
Disposals HE (228) (138) (55) (421)
At 30 June 2012 RZE--EXB=1H - - - -
Accumulated depreciation ZiHiTE RRE
and impairment
At 1 July 2010 RZZ-S5tA-A 23 14 26 63
Provided for the year FRBAE 45 28 11 84
At 30 June 2011 and RZE——%7A=TAR
1 July 2011 I = 68 42 37 147
Provided for the year FRBAE 11 7 3 21
Written back on disposals HEME (79) (49) (40) (168)
At 30 June 2012 RZE--EXB=1H - - - -
Net carrying amount IRMEFE
At 30 June 2012 RZE--EXB=1H - - - -

At 30 June 2011 RIB-—%7A=1H 160 96 18 274
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19. GOODWILL 19.F 8
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cost RAE
At beginning of the year F1) 1,275,151 28,168
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) Uk BE B B A R (K aE32) - 1,246,983
At end of the year FR 1,275,151 1,275,151
Accumulated impairment Z5HRE
At beginning of the year F4]) 22,923 22,923
Provided during the year FNEAE 849,835 -
At end of the year FR 872,758 22,923
Net carrying amount BREFE
At 30 June RANA=+H 402,393 1,252,228

Impairment test on goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to

the following cash-generating units (“CGU") for

impairment testing:

— Media and advertising services — outdoor billboards;

— Media and advertising services — others; and

—  Media related services — media management and consulting

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the CGUs is as

BB E 1R A
BREBAVREZHECHRENTREE
SEM(REEEFEM DIERBERA

- BRRESRE-PINESE
- BRRENRESRE-HM R
- REEAAREIRTS — R I MR

DEEERSELBU HBREAENT

follows:
2012 2011
—EB——fF —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Media and advertising services — outdoor billboards 82 K & R — B INE S 5,245 5,245
Media and advertising services — others RS R E RS — EAth 397,148 1,246,983

Media related services — media management and
consulting

RS — R EE R

G

402,393 1,252,228
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19. GOODWILL (cont'd)

Media and advertising services — outdoor billboards

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a three-year period approved by senior management.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 20.18% (2011:
23.90%) per annum. The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
of this group of cash-generating units beyond the three-year period
is 2.8% (2011: 8.60%) per annum. Senior management believes that
any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount is based would not cause the carrying amount of this
unit to exceed its recoverable amount.

Media and advertising services — others

The Group performed its annual impairment test as at 30 June 2012.
The goodwill associated with the acquisition of a subsidiary, GMG Media
Group Limited (“GMG Media”), by the Group in July 2010. The business
of television chain broadcasting advertising networks has continued to
operate but without achieving any significant success since the planned
collaboration with major shopping malls and department stores in the PRC
have not been carried out as expected in the past periods. Accordingly,
GMG Media has instantly focused on some business alliances with other
independent third parties for the expansion of its advertising channels via
like free newspapers in the PRC, magazine, mobile phone applications
and online shopping platform, etc. During the year, due to the regulations
restrictions and technical problems, certain proposed media had been
turned down or postponed.

In the light of the decision to focus on other advertising channels, the
senior management is expected, on the one hand, the cash flows be
derived from the business of television chain broadcasting advertising
networks in the future is minimal. On the other hand, the success of
business alliances would be the core business of GMG Media.

The recoverable amount of this cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by the senior management covering a five-
year period, and a discount rate of 13.88% (2011: 17.12%) per annum.
No annual growth rate has been applied for cash flows beyond five-year
period (2011: 3% per annum).

As a result of this analysis, senior management has recognised an
impairment of HK$849,835,000 against goodwill previously carried at
HK$1,246,983,000 in the consolidated income statement.

19. & (@)

BERESHRE -FHEER

IR S EE BN 2 TR E & 58 TR H B B AL
BREEENE —FHMBEEAEELR
CHREBAABEZFABEET - B RER
BIFMERZ MR EAEF2018% (2T ——
F:23.90%) c BB =FHz—HBSES
BAUZESRENRAKEREREF28% (=T
——F :8.60%)MEHE - e RBEEMEE
ARESEMREZ EBBEZTAAEARE
SBHETEREM REEBBEATKE S
B o

BRERESRE - Hit
AEEBR-ZE—ZF X A=+ALHETEER
ERA -  FEREAEBN T —SFAKE
Mt B A 58)GMG Media Group Limited ([ GMG
Medial) B - BREFRBEFEZEYHSE LA
EARAEZTERBASMAERIESE
7 AEHEREERES AR EBHRERK
g BREIEBERNEAKRE - At - GMG
MediaB Z BIEERRBEHMBYF=H2H2
ETEBEE  BRPEERERE - M5 7
HEEEARARBLENTFASHEALES
RE-FAN - AREERBIERMERE - 85
TRZABEEEL AHTE -

BRREINEMESREZRE  SREEE
R 7 RRRREEHEREERSH
REBzREREMTIRE - MBS —HE - K
2 MR RGMG MediaZ D #H -

IH 3R 4 A B 2 PR (] 4 B8 T R H 3 1B AT
EREEEIEZ AFHMRBEEAREE YR
EREEANREFH13.88% (T ——F :
17.12%) 2 R BB 2 FERAEBEET - WE
REBRATFHCRERERBFERR(ZE
——%F : §F3%) °

RESMER SREBESRESKaRT
i@ 1T M1 1,246,983,0008 7T 2 i B HRRE
849,835,000/ T °
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19. GOODWILL (cont’d)
Media related services - media management and consulting
The goodwill associated with the acquisition of a subsidiary, Fadara
Limited, amounted to HK$22,923,000 was fully written off in 2009.

The calculation of value in use for media and advertising services (outdoor
billboards and others) cash-generating units are most sensitive to the
following key assumptions:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Discount rates

Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks
specific to each CGU, taking into consideration the time value of
money and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not
been incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount rate
calculation is based on the specific circumstances of the Group and
its operating segments and is derived from its weighted average cost
of capital (“WACC"). The WACC takes into account both debt and
equity. The cost of equity is derived from the expected return on
investment by the Group's investors. The cost of debt is based on the
interest bearing borrowings the Group is obliged to service. Segment-
specific risk is incorporated by applying individual beta factors.
The beta factors are evaluated annually based on publicly available
marked data.

Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget
period

Rates are based on published industry research for media and
advertising services — outdoor billboards and senior management
expectations on long-term growth rate for media and advertising
services — others operates. Accordingly, in the opinion of senior
management, the growth rates used would not exceed the long-term
average growth rates for the industries, or countries in which the
entity operates, or for the market to which the unit (group of units) is
dedicated.

Budget gross margin and revenue
Budgeted gross margin and revenue are based on past practices and
expectations on market development.

19. HE @)
REHERE - EEEERER
BRI B8 Bff B A B Fadara Limited B B 2 /5 &2
22,923,000 0 E R Z T L F B EUMS -

RENEERB(PHESEEEM ReES
ﬂuﬁﬁﬁfﬁEZﬁ”ﬁﬁxiﬁ NI EBREF

ﬂlﬁfﬁ

(i) HERE
EE£E$%E‘ ReELBEMNFERR2HT
BRHE - EhERIEBZEHREER
imuiﬁ”rqﬂIﬁ/ﬁﬁzifﬁﬁﬁéFZTI
RIEER - BERERTYRAEE R ELE S E
ZHEBAFE  UBMAEMEFHES
AT NI ER KA ) - IHETH
ASMAR REB R Em - Bal AR E
FEBKEEZREZTAHOR - EHK
$TJ$E%F$EIEEE BR i SEER
7 #R 4 E [\ T 4 48 FE A {8l Bl beta
%Kﬁﬁ%%é.\ beta MG IRIEARA ST
BIRETFRHE

(i) AURBEBRENzREREBZERE

BERTIABRIREIESRE —PINE
ERZETIBETERRARGREEEY

BRESRE -HtEE RMEEX
ZIRMAEE - At - GREEERER
FAZEREETEBBERKEEMEL
TTEHBERKEM (—AER) AT 2™
B REITFIgIRER

(iii) FHEEFIR K%
HEENRERTIABEEI R ETHI5E
Rz A RELE -
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20. CLUB MEMBERSHIP 20. 2EfTEE
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Hong Kong, at cost BB EEAE 150 150
21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21. B AR ZRE
The Company
AAF
2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fx FHEIT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRG  BKAE 1 1
Impairment DEREN 1 (1
Loans to a subsidiary R E R BRHEMNE R 1,251,190 -
Less: impairment (note a) BB (M ita) (851,190) -
400,000 -
400,000 -
Due from subsidiaries FEUS B S A RIZRIA
At cost A ANE 208,248 1,475,846
Impairment (note b) SBE (K D) (173,307) (173,395)
34,941 1,302,451
Notes: KaF -

(a) An impairment of HK$851,190,000 (2011: Nil) was recognised for loans to a
subsidiary with a carrying amount of HK$1,251,190,000 (before deducting the
impairment loss) during the year because of the reasons stated in note 19.

(b)  An impairment of HK$10,438,000 (2011: HK$18,465,000) was recognised
for amounts due from certain subsidiaries during the year. A reversal
of impairment on amounts due from certain subsidiaries amounted to
HK$10,526,000 (2011: HK$10,015,000) was also made during the year.

The amounts due from subsidiaries included in the Company’s current
assets are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
The amounts advanced to a subsidiary included in the investments in
subsidiaries above are unsecured, interest-free and not repayable within
one year.

@ FRAERMHBEARELEEEAS
1,251,190,000/8 7T (MR EFBE 2B 2 ER
2R E851,190,0008 (= E——F : &) -
HREHNHE -

(b) HF AT EYE T KB A K IERERRE
10,438,000 % 7T ( — T — — 4 : 18,465,000
BIL) c SERFEARBRE THEBRFRE
B H R (B # @ 10,526,000 T ( — T — — 4 :
10,015,000 7T) °

FEARRRRE A 2 A FEURPH B A R R R AR
R BRI EEFEFE - LG AWBRRNIRER
BN -HEMNBARRERARER 28 AEFR—F
MIEE



China Outdoor Media Group Limited
Annual Report 2012

63

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY RE

For the year ended 30 June 2012 HE=-T—=—FA=+HILFE

21.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 30 June 2012 are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/ Nominal value

21. AB AT
E/\\\ g J*:E/\
“|?

Percentage of

®E(®)
A=+B 2 MBS0

registration of issued/ equity attributable to
Name and operation paid up capital the Company Principal activities
MR 287/ ARNREML
8 HMREE B BREAEE EEEAL TEXEHB
Direct Indirect
HiE %
Konmate Investments Hong Kong ("HK") HK$2 100% - Investment holding
Limited EB(EE] 2B REER
BEEREARAF
Konwide Development HK HK$2 100% - Inactive
Limited Bt 2T UEX
ERERERAR
Noble City (Asia) Limited HK HK$2 100% - Investment holding and
PEE (M) BRAR N 28T provision of management
services
REER LB EE RS
Welchem Development HK HK$2 - 100%  Inactive
Limited BB 28T UEE
ERBERBBRNA
China New Media Company HK HK$2 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited BB 28T RAZR
hREFTEEERR
China New Media (HK) HK HK$100 - 51%  Provision of media
Company Limited EF 10077 management and
HEEEE(BR)BRAT consultancy services
REHEEEMENRS
Fadara Limited British Virgin Islands (“BVI”)  United States dollars - 100%  Inactive and applying for strike
HERAHE ("US$") off
([RBEZES]) 100 EEEERIERETH
[ESHIES )
L&L Partners’ Limited BVI US$29,868 - 100%  Investment holding
RERAHES 29,868% 7T REER
iMediagate Limited BVI us$100 - 51% Inactive and applying for strike
RERIES 100%7T off
EEEBRIERETH
Shanghai Win Advertising PRC Renmibi (“RMB") - 100%  Provision of outdoor media
Media Co., Ltd. H 5,000,000 advertising services
LERBESEREER AT ARE(TARYE]) REPIERESRS
5,000,0007T
GMG Media BVI Us$1 - 100%  Investment holding and
RBRELES 1%L consultancy services
RE AR N R R R 7
R mxiﬁJIIEE §F PRC US$100,000 - 100%  Inactive
BRA s 100,000 7T BEER
IREREHRESARAT  PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Provision of chain

FE AE#5,000,0007C

broadcasting advertising
networks and media related
services

RESHHEEBREERE REE
1BRE RS
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21.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

22.

During the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group acquired GMG Media
and its subsidiaries, Jt REFEEEEBR AT and It RTHIEE EEHA
BPBR7A7A]. Further details of this acquisition are included in note 32 to the

financial statements.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

21. A B AT 2 RE (#|)

HE_T—

—FRAZTALEE  AEBER

BGMG Media R KB ARt REREEES
BRAFRIERTHIRESEABERRE - F
RAUHE 2 — Rt B SN M T IRk MY 532 -

22. AERE QN T 2R
2012 2011
—8—=F —T——f
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT

Unlisted shares, at cost

Share of net assets

FELMR - A
DIEEEFE

Particulars of the Group’s associates at 30 June 2012 are as follows:

AEER T ——FRA=THZBEQRF

BT

Percentage of

Particulars ownership interest
Place of of issued attributable to
Name incorporation shares held the Group Principal activities
rEEEGERE
% B AL 3t B FRERTROFE ERAAL FEER
iKanTV Limited ("iKanTV") BVI Ordinary shares of 47% Investment holding and provision
EEERABRAA KBELHS US$1 each of on-line shopping, advertising
(I2FER)) FREEIETZERR and media related services
REZFRRREBLEY  ESK
e R
HD Production Limited HK Ordinary shares of 24% Inactive
BERENEERAF Bt HK$1 each EEEHG
BREEVETZEBR
The Group’s shareholdings in the associates are indirectly held by the AEERBEARNREDAARRBEER
Company. A e
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (cont'd)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates
extracted from their management accounts is set out below:

22. RAERE QAT 2 R |
BRAEEBLA AT HBER(HaESE Y
EEERMESHIIMT :

At 30 June
WA<A=+H
2012 2011
—E—-F —ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT T
Assets BiE 3,790 4,651
Liabilities afE (24,306) (18,386)
Net liabilities BEFHE (20,516) (13,735)
Year ended 30 June
BEAA=1THLEE
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHRT T
Revenues W2k 21,036 6,679
Loss for the year FREE (6,781) (4,236)

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of losses of
associates because the share of losses of the associates exceeded the
Group's interests in associates. The amounts of the Group’s unrecognised
share of losses of those associates for the current year and cumulatively
were HK$3,187,000 (2011: HK$1,978,000) and HK$6,851,000 (2011:
HK$3,664,000) respectively.

il

HRDEHE AR EIERBASENEE AR
2R MASEBERIEERESNEE AR
2 AEERERZ L SHE AT
FEBBERIFEED /3,187,000 (=
T ——4 11,978,000 7T) % 6,851,000 7T
(ZZ——% : 3,664,000 7T) °

i
o
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS 23.BEWRE SN - AARE  EE
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES R E B RRIR
The Group The Company
rEE AAT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E—-F % ZB--F ZT—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHT FHExT FHT
Trade receivables FEUE 5 5,593 1,609 - -
Prepayments, deposits and other TERHIE - 'Re &k
receivables oA FEGRIR
— Other receivables - HippEu s 38,783 30,104 - 8
- Deferred expenses - BERER 26,932 21,360 - -
- Prepayment and deposits - BNRIERRS 661 892 284 322
66,376 52,356 284 330
Impairment RIE (16,029) (2,278) - -
50,347 50,078 284 330
55,940 51,687 284 330

The Group's trading terms with customers are mainly on credit or received
in advance. The credit period is generally 30 days. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables so as to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the directors of
the Company. The Group has concentration of credit risk on certain
customers. As at 30 June 2012, two customers attributable to the Group’s
total trade receivables were 100%. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancement over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables, based on the invoice date, is as

AEBEBREP 285 EKE B ARKETABS
HET EEHRA30A - AEEHNER
EHAREERYGRIBAZTEREEERR - K
REAEZTEHWTBIRNEHR - AEEMNE
ERBRETFRETEP BE_ZT——-F5XA
=tH MEBEFPEEAKEELESTAR
Z100% ° A5 E W B H B WCE 5 5k A 8RS
BEMBERRIIFLEMERESRERER - BIR
EHHANEE o

RN E SR ER BB Z BRGSO

follows:
2012 2011
—E-ZfF 2%
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Within 30 days 30HA 589 1,189
31 - 60 days 31HZ60H 445 132
61 - 90 days 61HZE90H 445 -
Over 90 days but within 1 year HBiE0HE L1 F 3,614 288
Over 1 year HBiE1F 500 -

5,593 1,609
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (cont'd)

The movements in provision for impairment of prepayments, deposits and
other receivables are as follows:

23. BRE SN - BNANE - &S

& B4t FE W FRIE ()

FENFIR - e KA RKREA R E R EE

E N

2012 2011

—E-CfF 2%

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At beginning of the year F4) 2,278 -
Impairment losses recognised (note 71) ERERAEEER (FZ11) 13,776 2,278
Exchange realignment ME 5 R E (25) -
At end of the year FR 16,029 2,278

Note: An impairment loss of HK$13,776,000 (2011: HK$2,278,000) was provided
for individually impaired other receivables with carrying amounts of
HK$17,714,000 (2011: HK$4,556,000) (before deducting the impairment
loss) during the year. Other than the abovementioned, the financial assets
included in the prepayments, deposits and other receivables relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default, and none of
them is either past due or impaired.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually nor

Bfet - RER - BIEEIE13,776,0008 T (T ——
F 2,278,000/ 7T ) I FhEREE 417,714,000
BT(ZZT——4 1 4,556,000/ 7T) (3AKR R
EEIBAT) 2 185 2 5 (8 £ Ath 8 YR8 1
& B buiES  SEATENRIE - HEe REA
FEUFRIE 2 & Bh & 2 P /9 AR RE FE YR IE Sl 3
AR - BHY EE HA s RE o

18 5l sk H R R IR E 2 ERE 55K ER

collectively considered to be impaired is as follows: O -
2012 2011
—E-=fF —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired K ER IR AR (A 589 1,189
1 - 30 days past due wmH1H=E30H 445 132
31 - 60 days past due ®H31HZE60H 445 -
Over 60 days but within 1 year past due BB A60 B A F 4,114 288
5,593 1,609
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to those 2R 380 B IR AR RV E A JE UG SR8 B By 3T I R D

customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to those customers
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

BOESER -

BB EEREMN BRI B EAKE 2
BABTHRINER - REBEBENKER &
ERR BMRZERBIEREZTEERE
- MARERDEE SR 2800 - HitH

BIEHIRERE -
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24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

As at the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$164,000
(2011: HK$841,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange
control imposed by the PRC government.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

25. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

24. BERBITHEF

RBEHMEER  AEEUARE(TAR
B FHMEZ B RIRITHF /164,000 (=
T——1% : 841,00087T) - AREREEAK
BEEMEY  BEBESELPHASHEK
FFbE ANE INEE $1FTRR -

RITHMETIRBEE ARITERME 2 FHF X
BREUVFLG - |RITAEFT HF RN SR HE R
BEBEBREFZRIT -

25. BENE SR - HtEAKE

ACCRUALS RETEHR
The Group The Company
AEME AAT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F —E-—F —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT FHET TFHT
Trade payables ENE S 1,645 - - -
Other payables E At BT RIE K
and accruals EstER 16,332 7,363 2,267 2,427
17,977 7,363 2,267 2,427

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting RREPESEARBEZEAHRIENES K

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: FREGDTIAT
2012 2011
—E——F —ZT——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 30 days 30BR 1,645 -

BB SR AR SR THRI0B AT

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average 30-day

terms.
26. OTHER BORROWINGS 26. Htfg &
The Group The Company
rEE AAT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E—=F —E——F —E-—F —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT FHET FHT
Other loans HMER 2,401 2,401 1,523 1,523

The other borrowings are unsecured, non-interest bearing and has no
fixed term of repayment.

Hib &G REER - 28 REREEER -
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27.FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases a motor vehicle under finance lease. The lease is
classified as finance lease and has original lease term of three years.
The effective borrowing rate was 2.4% per annum. The lease is on a
fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payment.

At 30 June 2012, the total future minimum lease payments under finance

lease and their present values were as follows:

Minimum lease payments

27. B MEEERE

FEERERERERMAAE - HEEHER
MERE  REESMR=F BEEEENEA
FF242 - HERETERRELE  BUE
PR ENRET LA 2Bk

RZB-——"FXA=+0 REBEHEZX
ReEHESNTEENIERENT

Present value of minimum
lease payments

BEASAR BREAEFARRE
2012 2011 2012 2011
— —Z——%F —E-CfF —E——%F
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FExT FAET
Amounts payable FET IR
Within one year —&FR 161 161 151 151
In the second year EF 28 161 24 151
In the third to fifth E=FFERF
years, inclusive (BHEEERSE) - 28 - 24
Total minimum finance BEmEHENKEE
lease payments 189 350 175 326
Future finance charges RRFE T (14) (24)
Total net finance lease E R AT ERIE
payables ZHFE 175 326
Portion classified as NEATRBBERD
current liabilities (151) (151)
Non-current portion ERBED 24 175
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28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES

Details of the issued Company’s convertible loan notes are set out below:

(a)

(b)

CB Feb 2010

On 26 February 2010, the Company issued convertible loan notes
with principal amounts of HK$9,800,000 (“CB Feb 2010"). CB Feb
2010 are convertible into ordinary shares of the Company at any time
between the date of issue of CB Feb 2010 and their settlement date.
CB Feb 2010 are convertible at 6,250,000 shares per HK$1,000,000
principal amounts. If CB Feb 2010 have not been converted, they will
be redeemed at par on 25 February 2012. Interest of 4% per annum
will be paid annually until that settlement date.

In April 2011, CB Feb 2010 had been fully converted and 61,250,000
new ordinary shares of the Company had been issued.

Restated CB Jul 2010

On 22 July 2010, the Company issued convertible loan notes with
principal amounts of HK$1,228,890,000 (“CB Jul 2010") as part
of the consideration for the acquisition of GMG Media and its
subsidiaries. On 13 August 2010, the Company and Fully Wealthy
Inc. (the "Bondholder”) entered into a deed (the “Deed”) to alter
and restate the terms of CB Jul 2010 (“Restated CB Jul 2010"). On
17 August 2010, the Company and the Bondholder entered into a
supplemental deed to amend certain terms of the Deed. The Deed
and supplemental deed had been approved at extraordinary general
meeting held on 15 September 2010. Restated CB Jul 2010 are
convertible into ordinary shares of the Company at any time between
16 September 2010 and their settlement date. Restated CB Jul 2010
are convertible at 7,692,307 shares per HK$1,000,000 principal
amounts. The Company may at any time before 21 July 2015 by
serving at least ten days’ prior written notice to the Bondholder with
the total amount proposed to be redeemed from the Bondholder.

B ISERAR MY RE

“ERAZTHLEFE

28. A REREE
AARBTZ A RRERZEHENT

(a) =

(b)

—E-ZFE_ATBRRERE
R-E—TFE-F-+"H  AQAET
$$%%&wammﬁﬁ2ﬂ%%%ﬁ§
B(IZZ—ZF_AnBKREE]) -
f%E—HT%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂfT#:%fﬁﬁ—
H‘Hﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂ (< B EREAR A
TREELBRAEAQRLRE  SHEs
%81,000, oooﬁpfruz —ZSF-_AA#K
HXiﬁ—JRT@ﬁXG,ZSO,OOOHﬁHﬂD fid —
T-EF-_ANBRREERELSE - BR
—E—HF A+ RAREERED -
BERBRRRFRLIEE  FFEE  H
EEMBH-

R-ZZFE——FMOA —ZT-FF A0k
R BECERHLI - M61,250,000 74

NEFNEBREEETT -

REJN_Z—ZFLATEREE
WZT— Titﬂ T8 ARRELT
N4 5851,228,890,00058 7T 2 Al AR &
FER(ZZE—TF L ATTBRKRER])
YE AU FEGMG Media & H I 8 A 7 2 &6
PRE-RZT—ZTFNA+=0 " A2
7 H2Fully Wealthy Inc. ([1EHEEA L)
AT RE(TRE]) - UETTRENZ=F
—EFEL ANBRBRERZ GER(TEEY =

—ZEFELANBRBRER]) - RZZT—F
FNA+TER  ARBERESFEE AL
HRZIBELMETRIEE TR - LIERE
RRBFEER-_Z—ZENATHARTZ
PRERAFRIA G A - LBV T —TF
+ AR EREIR T —ZTFNA Jr/\
HAESEN BB ERBRL B AL

%Hx ﬂﬁzxi%m 000, ooo/%yzz,z&
BT -TFLANRREEN LIRS
7,692,307%&1% c ARBAIRZE—A
FEAZ+—ARERER  AESSE
ANBELHEL+TAEAEEBN - HEABK
(ECESPN gt
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28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (cont'd)
(b) Restated CB Jul 2010 (cont'd)
On 21 July 2015, if any Restated CB Jul 2010 have not been
converted, subject to the Hong Kong Code of Turnovers and Mergers
and public float requirement of the Listing Rules, the remaining
Restated CB Jul 2010 shall converted into shares of the Company.
Any remaining outstanding Restated CB Jul 2010 which cannot be
converted will be cancelled. Restated CB Jul 2010 are non-interesting

bearing.

28.

During the year, Restated CB Jul 2010 had been fully converted and
5,699,721,000 (2011: 3,753,279,000) new ordinary shares of the

Company had been issued.

The fair values of the liability components of CB Feb 2010 and Restated CB
July 2010 were estimated at the issuance dates using an equivalent market
interest rate (approximately 4.2% and 4.2% respectively) for a similar
bond without a conversion option. The residual amounts are assigned as

the equity component and are included in shareholders’ equity.

The convertible loan notes issued during the relevant year have been split
into the liability and equity components and the movement are as follows:

ARREREE @)

(b) BREF-Z—SFLATHRREE @)
SEEDDKERA TR ETRIA
BHRERTZART MR -_Z—RF
tA-+—BREN_ZT—ZTE+LATR
BEHEFER SR BT 2EEN -2 —
TELATBRERERBRARR AR
5o BT MREIRBEE LY S5 —
T-TFELATHRREEETEY L8
5| - T—TE+ AARRERT LS -

RER - KB -_Z—SFLATBRKRE
BEEERERIE - M5,699,721,0000% (=
T ——4F : 3,753,279,0000%) AN A FJH &
MR T ERET -

—E-EHFE_ANBBRRRREEN T -F
FLARBERERERD 2 A FETNET
HEER A I L R R OUE 7 2 BRI 5 F
E(HRIR42E R4 2[E) 5 - FIRS B
RS - Wit ANBERBERERA -

REMFERNBTZABRKRERRERESRE
BEEERA D RAZEHNT

CB Feb 2010 Restated CB Jul 2010 Total
“E-BFZH &E5-5-%%
TRERE tATRREE @it
2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
2% Z=ZB-Zf "Z2—% IZB-Zf _"T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FEL FiEn FAL FER FET
At beginning of the year E3] 9,912 627,464 - 627,464 9,912
Nominal value of convertible loan notes issued £ RE/TAHAREH
during the year ZBREE - - || 12283890 - || 1,228,890
Equity component 2 - - (228,488) - (228,488)
Liability component at issuance date RETRHZAESH - - 1,000,402 - 1,000,402
Conversion R (9,789)  (634,355) (408,187)  (634,355) (417,976)
Interest expense FIBRAZ 318 6,891 35,249 6,891 35,567
Interest paid ERFIE (441) - - - (441)
Liability component at end of the year FRZAEDD - - 627,464 - 627,464
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. R
2012 2011
—E—-F —FT—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
Authorised: ETE
20,000,000,000 ordinary shares 20,000,000,000/% & f% E &
of HK$0.01 each 0.01 BT E @A 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR
10,843,535,000 (2011: 5,143,813,800) 10,843,535,0000% ( =& ——4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 5,143,813,8000% ) &%
H1E0.018 T Ay 5@ A% 108,435 51,438
During the year, the movements in share capital were as follows: FER o RAEENT ¢
Number of shares Par value
BRAEE HE
'000 HK$'000
TFh& T
At 1 July 2010 RZZE—ZTF+LA—H 1,149,285 11,493
Issue of shares for acquisition of a subsidiary — FtUEE — BB A BT
(note (a)) (Hiat(a)) 100,000 1,000
Conversion of CB Feb 2010 (note (b)) N —E-TF - AR[BIRERE
(Kt:E(b)) 61,250 613
Conversion of Restated CB Jul 2010 (note (¢)) HIR&KSEHN T —FF+ A
AR SR (A7 (c)) 3,753,279 37,532
Exercise of warrants (note (d)) TR RMRERE (M7t (d)) 80,000 800
At 30 June 2011 and 1 July 2011 RZZE——FXA=THK
—2—%+tHA—H 5,143,814 51,438
Conversion of Restated CB Jul 2010 (note (¢)) HIR&ESEHN T —FF+ A
AR AR (A777(c)) 5,699,721 56,997

At 30 June 2012

R-ZE——FA=1+H 10,843,535 108,435
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (cont'd)

Notes:

(a)

On 22 July 2010, 100,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each (“Consideration
Shares”) were issued as part of the consideration for the acquisition of a
subsidiary, GMG Group (note 32). The fair value of one Consideration Shares of
HK$0.223 was determined by reference to the Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of issue.

On 11 April 2011, 61,250,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued for the
fully conversion of CB Feb 2010 (note 28) with the principal amounts of
HK$9,800,000. An amount of HK$27,000 was transferred from the convertible
loan notes equity component to share premium upon the conversion of the CB
Feb 2010.

On 5 October 2010, 21 January 2011, 24 January 2011, 28 January 2011, 14
March 2011, 21 March 2011, 12 April 2011, 4 May 2011, 20 May 2011 and
23 May 2011, total of 3,753,279,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued for
the conversion of Restated CB Jul 2010 (note 28) with the principal amounts
of HK$487,926,000. Total amount of HK$90,721,000 was transferred from
the convertible loan notes equity component to share premium upon the
conversion of the Restated CB Jul 2010.

During the year, on 19 July 2011, 4 August 2011, 28 October 2011,
28 November 2011, 8 December 2011 and 12 December 2011, total of
5,699,721,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued in the conversion of
Restated CB Jul 2010 (note 28) with the principal amounts of HK$740,964,000.
Total amount of HK$137,767,000 was transferred from the convertible loan
notes equity component to share premium upon the conversion of the Restated
CB Jul 2010.

On 26 August 2010, 18 October 2010, 4 March 2011 and 28 April 2011, a total
of 60,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued for cash at a subscription
price of HK$0.20 per share pursuant to the exercise of the Company’s warrants
for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$12,000,000.

On 20 May 2011, 20,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued for
cash at subscription price of HK$0.16 per share pursuant to the exercise
of the Company’s warrants for a cash consideration, before expenses, of
HK$3,200,000.

29. RZA (40)

(a)

M-Z—ZTFE+H=-+="H 100,000,000 F
A& EE0.01 8 T 2 Bk fp (T RERR D ) B 81T -
{EB U EE — M B A RIGMG GroupZ o1&
(Ki5E32) - —BRRERMHZAFEA0.2235
TL 0 B2ERRRBMRETEBEBRR A2
WHEEE -

RZZT——FWMA+—H 61,250,000 & %
EE0OIBTZRN INEBH LR AESER
9,800,000 Tz T —TF_ARBBRER
(Ki7%28) 3877 - ©%827,0008 LY R R =
T-DF-_AURRERFATRARBERZE
D ERERDEE -

R-—Z2—ZF+ARR - —_F2——F—A=+
—B - ZE2-——f%-A-+@mA > ZF——
F-AZtNAR ZF-——F=ZA+@H =
T——F=ZA-+-—B Z—ZET——FWMAT
—H - ZE——FHRAMH - =ZFT——FHA
AZ+tBR=ZZF-——HFHA=-+=H &#
3,753,279,0008 & AR EIE0.0178 7T 2 B 15 Th 5t
HARAK $ % A487,926,000 8 T2 EH =T
—SF L ABRRERE (M 5528) ME1T - 4858
90,721,000 T IR R ES T —FF+
AARRERNHAIRREREZER=THE

BERMEER

FR RZZT——FtA+IhhA ZF——
EFNAWA —E——F+/ -+ N\H =
T——F+—A=+N\H -ZFT——F+=
ANBER=ZZFE——F+=-A+=H &#
5,699,721,000 & F A% 0.01 B T Z KD E R A
7K 4 %8 5740,964,00008 T2 EEH - T —
TFE+ AR (M 5528) B 84T - 4258
137,767,000 TR RIRKEH — T —TF +
AR ERSHATRREREZERE =TS E
BERD = ER o

R-_ZB-—ZTFENA=-+ A —T—ZTF+A
+N\B ZE——F=-AmAR=_T—FN
A=+ N\ B8 &60,000,0000% & % E{E0.01
FEILZ IR TR B AN R B R AR A B 1T 1 4%
REBETRO0.20BITHEIT - UREURE « B3R
SRERNKREZATA12,000,0008 7T °

RZZT——FHHA=-+H 20,000,000k &
E{E0.01& T2 IR ) TR IR AR A AR AR e 38 7
THEMIZREBETR0.168 THIT - LAKREGR
& - MRS R ER IR F X AT 43,200,000%
5o
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SHARE CAPITAL (cont'd)

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options
issued under the scheme are included in note 30 to the financial
statements.

Warrants

On 6 May 2009, the Company announced the issuance of 210,000,000
warrants at an issue price of HK$0.0025 each (“2009 Warrants”) which
entitle the holders to subscribe for up to 210,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.20 per share for a period of two
years commencing from the date of issue of 2009 Warrants. During the
year ended 30 June 2011, 60,000,000 2009 Warrants were exercised and
the remaining 100,000,000 2009 Warrants was lapsed. At 30 June 2011,
the Company had no 2009 Warrants outstanding.

On 26 February 2010, the Company announced the issuance of
64,000,000 warrants at an issue price of HK$0.003125 each (“2010
Warrants”) which entitle the holders to subscribe for up to 64,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.16 per share
for a period of two years commencing from the date of issue of 2010
Warrants. During the year, none of 2010 Warrants (2011: 20,000,000)
were exercised. All remaining 44,000,000 2010 Warrants are expired
during the year ended 30 June 2012. At 30 June 2012, the Company had
no (2011: 44,000,000) 2010 Warrants outstanding.

SHARE OPTIONS

Share option scheme adopted in 2002

On 25 July 2002, a share option scheme was adopted by the Company
(the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to which the board of
directors of the Company may grant options to any employees, directors,
shareholders, suppliers, customers of the Group and any other person
or company who has contributed or may contribute to the development
and growth of the Group to subscribe for shares in the Company at any
price which is at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
of the Company on the date of the grant of the options; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the
options; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the Company. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the shares
in issue as at the adoption date of the 2002 Share Option Scheme or the
date of approval by the shareholders in general meeting where the limit
is refreshed. The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each eligible person under the 2002
Share Option Scheme in any twelve months period must not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue at the date of such grant unless approved by the
shareholders in general meeting.

29.

30.

B ISERAR MY RE

——HFRA=THLEFE

B A ()

i R A

ARAR A AT B KRB B B THER
1 SN B B REMEE30 o

R EE
RZBEAFHANA  AREEM @ BET

BEMRIEZ0.0025% 7L 317210,000,000
HREEE([ZZTNFREEE]) BT

BB AR - \_77ﬂfF RS AE RE 21T A 8
REAMFEHEA - BITEESRR0.208 TRE
5%210,000,000[8 R A G L@ - REE=
T——FXA=+HBIEFER 60,000,000
DZEENER Hﬂz& BITE  MHT

100,000,000 —ZEZ N FRBEFD KK -
RZZE——FA=1+H  AARWEERIT
F2 —ETNFRIEE -

RZZE—ZTFE_A=-+8 AR
?;z%*m;“fﬂﬁsmﬂgﬁo003125/%71?617
64,000,000 R EFE ([ DT —ZFRK

BE]D  BTIHBEAEN RZZ-ZTFR
H%“’*?"ﬁﬁﬁﬁtﬁrﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ BITEE

F B 0.16 78 7T R B8 & % 64,000,000 f% & 2~

AIEE - FRN - WE-_Z—ZFRIARES
(=—Z——4 :20,000,00017 ) EITF - 82~
44,000,000 — T —TFRKEF2IFERNE
ET-—FARNAZTHIEFEHME®R - R
TE——FXNAZ+H  AREYE(ZZE—
fi © 44,000,00017 ) WM KRITEZ ZE—FF

R o

fB IR e
REZBE2E-FRMZBRETE
RZZZ-F+AZTHE - ARARMER
B[ — 2T —FRERETE) - B
ARREZGAAAKEEIAES EFF K
RHER FPREMASERAEAAEE
ZEREEREHERMZEMATHATRY
B - AR E T%n 9%$ GIL S (323
BRAFENATR (YW EHEREE
HAR Tﬁxfﬁﬂﬂlmfﬁ (i) E’\?ﬁi%ﬁxﬂjﬁ%ﬂxﬁ
A AER S B AR B RO B PT 2 T
E: RNARBROEE - BE_ZTZT=
i%ﬁﬁ%?%?ﬁtﬂH%H%Z%}*/F&ZH%%?%‘%K
BHRA_TT_FREEIERRE
EI iﬁéﬁ%%ﬁéﬁﬂﬁiﬁtﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁ REER
EBITERMN10% - REKRRERREASHE
4 Az/*\%“7f5</\j:}7‘1?c17+ 18 A BT ER
BIRE_FREREAIIER ZBRENDE
LG EEITZROEE  TRERREERZ
BEITERM1% -
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30. SHARE OPTIONS (cont'd)

Share option scheme adopted in 2002 (cont’d)
Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

30. fE IR FE (30

R-ZBZ-SRMZBRETE (@)

Number of share options

BRESE
At Lapsed At
Name of category/ 1 July during 30 June Exercise
participant Date of grant 2011 the year 2012 Exercise period price*
—B--f -Z2--F
Eh/88HEER R A tA-H ERENU RAZtH f1EH ﬁﬁﬁ;
HK
B
Directors
E=x
Mr. Lu Liang 29 November 2007 3,200,000 - 3,200,000 29 November 2007 - 0.64
28 November 2017
Ebita i 2 “ZZEFT-A-tARE
+-A=t+hHE —E—tE+-AZt/\B
Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard 29 November 2007 8,403,175 - 8,403,175 29 November 2007 - 0.64
28 November 2017
v e e 3 “EREFY-ATARE
+-A=t+hE “E—tFt-AZ+N\R
11,603,175 - 11,603,175
Employees
g
In aggregate 29 November 2007 5,900,000 - 5,900,000 29 November 2007 - 0.64
) 28 November 2017
At e 3 ZERHET-AZTAAZE
+-A=thB “E—+E+-AZTNR
In aggregate 27 June 2008 4,070,000 (4,070,000) - 27 June 2008 - 26 June 2018 0.64
=F] ZETNE “ET\ERA=TtHZE
NAZTEH ZE-\FRAZTAH
9,970,000 (4,070,000) 5,900,000
Consultants
21
In aggregate 29 November 2007 32,859,525 - 32,859,525 29 November 2007 - 0.64
) 28 November 2017
&t e 3 I s e =
+—AZtAhB “Z—tF+t-AZt/\H
In aggregate 27 June 2008 30,970,000 - 30,970,000 27 June 2008 - 26 June 2018 0.64
ax —SENE “ERN\ERACTLRE
NAZTtH “Z-\ERAZTAH
63,829,525 - 63,829,525
85,402,700 (4,070,000) 81,332,700

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of
rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

* BRETEETERBRRBETARIARFR

REAMIRLL B 0T LAFE



FEESRBEEERAT g

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012 HZE—Z

30. SHARE OPTIONS (cont'd)

Share option scheme adopted in 2002 (cont’d)
The following share options were outstanding under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme during the year:

B ISERAR MY RE

——HFRA=THLEFE

30. B (@)
R-ISS-FERAZERETS (@)
AT BENRE - TT — FBRE B KRTT
i 2 BB A4

2012 2011

—E-CfF 2%

At beginning of the year F4) 85,402,700 85,652,700
Lapsed during the year FRKA (4,070,000) (250,000)
At end of the year FHR 81,332,700 85,402,700
At 30 June 2012, the Company had 81,332,700 (2011: 85,402,700) RZZE-——FXA=1tH KXRARE-F

share options outstanding under the 2002 Share Option Scheme. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 81,332,700 (2011:
85,402,700) additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of HK$813,000 (2011: HK$854,000) and share premium
of approximately HK$51,240,000 (2011: HK$53,804,000) (before issue
expenses).

Subsequent to 30 June 2012, no share options were granted, exercised,
cancelled or forfeited up to the date of issue of these financial statements.

31. RESERVES

(a) The Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

gfiﬂﬁﬁﬂéﬁaﬁ81,332,70019}(:;ﬁf
— 4 : 85,402,70017 ) M RATEREIRHE - IR
BARBBEBRALRE  2ETENRITE
B8 A A 15 8 B 3517 81,332,700 (=& — —
4 : 85,402,700/ ) AR R EEINEBAR - A
813,000 70(=Z ——4F : 854,000/ 70 ) RESN
BEAN R R ETE1TF X A14951,240,0008 (=
T ——4F : 53,804,000/ 7C) AN (B -

RZB-—FXA=1H% BEEZLFUBHR

EHEBE  HEBREERE T
R o
31. f#1E
(a) ~5£H
AEMNAEERBAFENREESER
HRBHREARKEBRPL2T) -
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(c)

31. RESERVES (cont’d) 31. & (80
(b) The Company (b) &2
Share- Convertible
based loan notes
Share payment  Warrants equity Accumulated
premium reserve reserve component losses Total
DRGRER AREE TREREX
BROGEE  ARzRE #E FEEEDD By ] Ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TARL TAT TAR FET TR
At 1 July 2010 RZE-TE+A—H 826,671 20,446 600 27 (807,930 39,814
Total comprehensive income for the year: R ERALE :
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (63,098) (63,098)
Share issued for acquisition of subsidiaries  WEEMB L AT (R
(note 32) (Hi#32) 21,300 - - - - 21,300
Share issued upon exercise of warrants TR R BT R 14,612 - (212) - - 14,400
Share issued upon conversion of convertible 3 R Rk EHZEH
loan notes ) 470,579 - - (90,748) - 379,831
Warrants lapsed during the year FREM RRiEE - - (250) - 250 -
Share options lapsed during the year FREM BkiE - (73) - - 3 -
Issue of convertible loan notes BIARERER
(note 28) (H1:228) - - - 228,488 - 228,488
Change in equity for the year ERrfgns 506,491 (73) (462) 137,740 (62,775) 580,921
At 30 June 2011 and 1 July 2011 RZZ——4$7 A=THR
“T—%+A-H 1,333,162 20,373 138 137,767 (870,705) 620,735
Total comprehensive income for the year: R ERALE :
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (874,629) (874,629)
Share issued upon conversion of convertible 3 R Rk B ZEH
loan notes ki 715,125 - - (137,767) - 577,358
Warrants lapsed during the year FREM RS - - (138) - 138 -
Share options lapsed during the year FREM BRiE - (653) - - 653 -
Change in equity for the year ERrgEns 715,125 (653) (138) (137,767) (873,838) (297,271)
At 30 June 2012 R-E-—F;A=1H 2,048,287 19,720 - - (1,744,543 323,464
Nature and purpose of reserves (c) REEZMEREN
(i) Share premium account (i) RGEER
Under section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, RIEBE B R AEDIE48BIE - RAA

the funds in the share premium account of the Company can
be applied in paying up unissued shares of the Company to be
issued to the shareholders of the Company as fully paid bonus
shares or in providing for the premiums payable on repurchase of

shares.

BROEBERPES AN RAR
AR R AR A EITZ REST
P B R 380 P I S AH B (21 B £ P B <
2 (8 ©
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31. RESERVES (cont'd)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (cont'd)
(ii) Share-based payment reserve
The share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of
the actual or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to the eligible participants recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for equity-settled share-
based payments in note 5(q) to the financial statements.

(iii) Warrants reserve
The warrants reserve represents the value of the unexercised
warrants issued by the Company recognised.

(iv) Convertible loan notes equity component
The convertible loan notes equity component represents the
value of the unexercised equity component of convertible loan
notes issued by the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for convertible loan notes in note 5(j)
to the financial statements.

(v) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in note 5(u) to the financial
statements.

32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 22 July 2010, the Group acquired the 100% equity interest in GMG
Media and its subsidiaries (collectively the “GMG Group”). GMG Group
is principally engaged in the provisions of television chain broadcasting
advertising networks in the PRC. The acquisition was made as part of the
Group's strategy to strength its advertising and media business in the PRC.

The purchase consideration for the acquisition of HK$1,241,890,000
was satisfied by (i) the allotment and issuance of 100,000,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each (“Consideration Shares”), credited as fully paid, in the
sum of HK$13,000,000; and (ii) the issuance of convertible loan notes,
CB Jul 2010, carrying no interest for a term of 5 years at a conversion
price of HK$0.13 for each share of the Company, in the principal amount
of HK$1,228,890,000. Details of the acquisition are set out in a circular
issued by the Company on 26 March 2010.

On 22 July 2010, the Company issued the Consideration Shares to the
vendor. The fair value of one Consideration Shares of HK$0.223 was
determined by reference to the Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of issue.

31. f# & (80

() REZMERBN @
(i) URGOBEBENHZFE
VARt RETRN R B IR B
2 M R 5(0) B DA B i A S0 A B AR
RERZNFARMEARE - @6
ERSEATERBERRITEZE
BREERNEA B EBR LN FE -

(iii) FREE R
REEBHEEEARREETEMNAK
Tz AR 2 CREREE -

(iv) THRREFHERER D
AHRRERRERR D ERENE
AP FES() B AT IR A B R R IR AT R
MEFEE - ARREBEITEMART
B2 TR E SRR B S 0 FER
EfE-

(v) EXEE
&R B EERRE I ER TR
RFEEZMBERLEZR - FEHIE
T IRER M S ()T E 2 B RTBRE
# e

32. BB QT

RZZE-—ZFLA-+-R  REFREGMG
Media X K [ff8 2 & (518 [ GMG R E |) 2 31
i o GMGRE X EXH /NP EREHEHER
B EE M - BT AR E o KX B E
HRREEG CRREEA IR -

U g /9 BE B 18 41,241,890,0008 7T © BB
THIFR T ()A ££13,000,00078 7T LA B2
% #17100,000,000% &R EE0.01 B L2 A
BRZIVESUR IR (TRERRD 1) 5 R(>(DEFTAR
HBEESRIBBTABRADNRRN ZRES
FHTHBBERERE T —TFEL AR
ME4E - A4 %8/41,228,890,0008 7T © A H
W HEHNARAR-_E—ZTF=A =+
NETIEEZBEK -

R-Z—2ELA-T-RB ARRAAEHE
FREE - —BRERS 2 AFEA0223
B AR ARBIET B BB
2 -
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd) 32. WEH B2 R )
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of GMG Group RUEE BRI EGMGRBE 2 AT E R EERE
acquired at the date of acquisition is as follows: B2 AFEWNT :
HK$'000
FER
Property, plant and equipment W - BERZE 407
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 30 2 B Ath e Uk IE 1,621
Bank and cash balances RITRB2ET 4,232
Trade and other payables FEA B 5 3 % B Ath FE A< RKIB (206)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATEAEZAHENEEEFE 6,054
Non-controlling interest I A e (1,847)
Goodwill on acquisition (note 79) W is s 2 B (HaE19) 1,246,983
Purchase consideration Wi rE 1,251,190
Satisfied by: FEBTIIEALZM
Fair value of Consideration Shares issued EETRERN 2 A TE 22,300
CB Jul 2010 issued BET_E-TFLARBRRE 1,228,890
1,251,190
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the GMG BHABEGMGEREE ZEERENTIT ¢
Group is as follows:
HK$'000
FER
Cash consideration ReRE -
Cash and bank balances acquired Fris iR & RIRITHTT 4,232
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included FAREEBFAEHREERECRER
in cash flows from investing activities ZRFCERRAFHE 4,232
The acquired subsidiaries contributed net loss of approximately FrERB ARRKEAREE T ——F
HK$74,000 to the Group's loss for the period between the date of NAZTRLEFESMAREBRERERFE
acquisition and the year ended 30 June 2011. #374,000/ 7T °
Had the business combination taken place at 1 July 2010, the revenue of WEKEHR_ZE—ZF+A—B#ET &%
the Group would remain unchange and the loss of the Group for the year B2 WS RETE mMAEEHZ —T——
ended 30 June 2011 would have been HK$49,105,000. FRA=THIEFEREIERE /49,105,000

JC ©
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33. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Other than the non-cash transaction in relation to the acquisition of
subsidiaries as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, the Group
entered into finance lease arrangements in respect of a motor vehicle with
a total capital value at the inception of the leases of HK$451,000 during
the year ended 30 June 2011.

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for
in the financial statements were as follows:

33.

34.

B ISERAR MY RE

“ERAZTHLEFE

EXFRERS

RIS REMI2MEEEBRENB AR Z
FEERGIN AEBEERAEFTUERE
ZH - RBE-Z—— A ~A=THLFEA
ERIRR 2 BN BE H451,000757T °

FREE
RREPREERE A - REE W OB HRR ot
HABBIELEE

2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Indemnity related to a former subsidiary BE—MAIME AR 2 BERE
(note 35(b)) (K17£35(b)) 7.460 7,359

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the Group or the
Company under the above possible claim.

35. PENDING LITIGATIONS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following pending
litigations:

(a) In September 2004, a Writ of Summons was served on the Company
by an individual third party demanding immediate repayment of
borrowings of approximately HK$1,600,000 together with the
interest thereon. As the Company had never borrowed money from
that individual third party, the directors of the Company were of the
opinion that the Company had no obligation to pay the demanded
amount. In January 2005, an amended Writ of Summons was served
on the Company by the lender of the Group to clarify that the
individual third party acted as an agent of the lender. The directors
of the Company instructed the lawyer of the Company to handle this
matter. The loan advanced by the lender of HK$1,523,000 together
with interest and penalty of HK$1,149,000, totaling of approximately
HK$2,672,000, were accrued in the financial statements (included in
other borrowings and other payables and accruals respectively) and
has not yet been settled as at 30 June 2012.

The Court has granted an order to adjourn sine die the plaintiffs’
application to set down this case on 15 March 2006. That is to say,
the lender and its agent have temporarily withheld the proceedings
against the Company. This claim has not been settled up to the date
of approval of these financial statements.

35.

RBEPREER - ARAEERR - A%KH
FARNENATRE R Lt FTRERE B SR
Al FAER »

LB A
REEBREEE - REFAUTHBERT

+ .
i

(@) ZTEEWFAA  —BEAB=FRER
AIELEE - ZRAREEL1,600,000
Bz EERBERE - BRARFRER
MZBEABE=FIEATARKE - BitA
RAESRAARARBAINEREE
ZHE -RZZZTRE A FEENE
HAMARAELEETHESR - BIE%Z
BAFE=FRERAZRE - KARIES
EERAARRAMEREERET - ERA
FR Rt A9 & 711,523,000 o3& R 7 8 K&
£13X1,149,0008 7T+ £5F492,672,0007%%
T BREBHmERR - BORIFFAEAM
BEUREMEMTIBRESER @ ER
T —FRNA=ZTHEKEE-

ERER-ZBEXRF=-ATHEHELE

T BRIFREEAA B FRRE - E
HTAREREEEEHARBNFL - &
EHELETBRRER  WREDKRT
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35. PENDING LITIGATIONS (cont’d)

(b) According to an agreement entered into by the Company, two of its
subsidiaries and two independent third parties in February 2003, the
Group disposed of a subsidiary, World Giant Limited (“World Giant"),
a company engaged in property investment in the PRC. In this
connection, the Company has undertaken to indemnify World Giant
for, among others, any increase in the liabilities of World Giant as a
result of any claim for taxation arising from any transactions effected
on or before the completion date of the disposal. In October 2004,
World Giant received a payment request from the PRC tax authority
in respect of PRC property taxes relating to the property held by
World Giant, including the late payment surcharge levied by the
tax authority, of which approximately an amount of RMB6,100,000
related to transactions on or before the completion date. The existing
management of World Giant had indicated to the directors of the
Company that the amount in respect of transactions on or before the
completion date should be paid by the Company. In February 2005,
a Writ of Summons was served on the Company demanding the
payment of approximately RMB6,100,000. However, such amounts
were covered by the amount accrued in the financial statements of
World Giant at the time of disposal. Accordingly, in the opinion of
the directors of the Company and having obtained an opinion from
the Company’s lawyer, the Group or the Company has no obligation
to pay the above taxes. Because of the uncertainty of the outcome
of this matter, the amount involved of approximately RMB6,100,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$7,460,000 (2011: HK$7,359,000),

has been shown as contingent liabilities in note 34.

The Writ of Summons was served on the Company in February 2005.
The Company has not received further claims from the plaintiff up to

the date of approval of these financial statements.

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office properties, office equipment and
billboards under operating lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated for
terms ranging from three months to five years, and lease payments are

fixed over the lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.

At 30 June 2012, the Group had total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

35. &K T & 5FER (@)

(b) BEARRA - AAGMEHBARRMHA
BYE=FTR_SZT=F_AFI&%
#FAEELE—METENEDERE
WIBARIZEEBRAA([ER]) - K
ANAFMEEREELBERE - Ed
BEAEERPN L EEK R B2 A
TR SMELEZ ARRIEEER -
FEEERMENNEBERZESELRE - R
—ZEMFE+A  EEREFEBEEE
BREEMFAEMENPREMERELHA
FEA - BERKEE BBRA RS -
Hp# AR% 6,100,000 7T F ZE K B
A 2RO SEH EHHERNEERE
ERARBESET  BETKAHIZ
AR SOBEFEBEAARALN - RZET
FFEZA ARABEEERIAHARE
6,100,000 TCHI{EE - AT - BEHMED
REERNESMHERE R Z2HNER
oAl ARARESRA(IEERE
AREEER) REB AR R I8
FRBREZEM AR EEZER A
BE - FILFTH R4 AREEE,100,0007T
(IRERNH7,460,000/87C) 2 B (=T —
—4F : 7,359,000/ 70) B 5 AT EE34FTE,
RS ARBIE °

ARBR_ZZRF - AEE LRESR -
BEMAELSHBRER A ARFR
BREEDANEMRE -

36. £ EMHEZH

AEBREHEREEHNALETHAE
% RATRERFINESE - BMEEAS
BAZEF  BERERBHNEE - TaE
e

RZB-—FXA=1+8 RETAIRHELEE
HEAENTH AR Z RASERSMT

2012 2011

—E-CfF 2%

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within one year —&FR 325 2,772
In the second to fifth years, inclusive BEIEERF(BEERMF) 23 1,636

348 4,408




37.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a)

(c)
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In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with its related

parties during the year:

37.BBEALXR S

(a)

RS BEREAMESTABERELRS
Oh - FRNAREEEEREATET IR
5

2012 2011
S —ET—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hfat FHET FAET
Associates: i dal/NSIE
Outdoor media advertising income PONEREES A - 56
Advertising expenses BERXZ 209 3,081
Consultancy fee charged by — B R E A RURER
a related company BERE (i) 678 858
Consultancy fee charged by — A1 2 1 AR
a related company ok (if) 487 -
Advertising expenses charged by — FAI A 2 1 AR
a related company BERX (iif) 706 1,294
Notes: Bt

(i) A director of the Company, Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard, who is also a

director of the related company, has significant influence over the related

company.

(i) A director of the Company, Mr Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, who is a director
and a substantial shareholder of the ultimate holding company of the

related company, has significant influence over the related company.

(iii) The related company is the holding company of iKanTV.

() ARPEERUAEERZBERRZE
= HRHERARHAERATES -

(i) ARBEBHEERLEARZAEARIZE
ﬂ&W“TZ%%%iEh% HWzkE
NRABEERTESN

(i) ZFAEARSEBERIIERAA -

As of 30 June 2012, there are no balances outstanding with the by RZZE——FA=+H" EﬁiJ:LH /N
associates and related companies as mentioned in above. RIRBENR Z W E R 4
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: (0 AEEXZEBEAEMS -
2012 2011
S Tz
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Short term employee benefits EEEEREF 570 1,358
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 12 to EEMWeE—PFBHNMBIREM T

the financial statements.

12
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. @& 2E€MTIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as ZEREeMIARKERRZERENT ¢

at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets EWMEE
Loans and receivables
BERRERRIE
The Group The Company
AEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——F —ET——%F —E——F —ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FHET FHET
Trade receivables FEWE SR 5,593 1,609 - -
Financial assets included in FFATERNREIE - B
prepayments, deposits and other T2 EL th fE W RKIB
receivables LEMEE 23,179 28,580 224 224
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE B B A B FR I - - 34,941 1,302,451
Loans to a subsidiary BN e 0i=E 7N - - 400,000 -
Cash and bank balances B MiBITEF 16,440 35,660 314 382
45,212 65,849 435,479 1,303,057
Financial liabilities =i
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
REBHEAATEZERAE
The Group The Company
rEH b NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F —E——F —ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT FHET FHET
Trade payables EE S 1,645 - - -
Financial liabilities included in other &+ A H th ji& {5 5018 K flE 51 2 F
payables and accruals ZEmasE 6,854 6,553 2,267 2,426
Other borrowings HibEE 2,401 2,401 1,523 1,523
Finance lease payables BhEHE EN A 175 326 - -
Convertible loan notes AR EREE - 627,464 - 627,464

11,075 636,744 3,790 631,413
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including
foreign currency risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk.
The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and RMB which are the functional
currencies of the principal operating entities of the Group. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect
of foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group
will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
In addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and bank balances, deposits and other receivables, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instrument.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of
credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty, by geographical
region and by industry sector.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 23 to the
financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities,
the Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

B ISERAR MY RE

“ERAZTHLEFE
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (cont’d)
(d) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

39. B EMEREBEZERBE @

(d) /}Ibgbﬁﬁﬂm
REE 2 BERBTERESR BRI RBERZR
PESHFN - WMEBRAEE B RAE
SREABRNEERRRENRDESH
sk o

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end

REBIZEATORBR ARG ENREH

of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted RKzemaERHknaT :
payments, is as follows:
The Group REE
On demand or
within 1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 5 years Total
EBEXS-FR —EmF ZERf st
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
8- “T—% ZB-Zf “T——F ZB-Zf “T—% ZB-Zf “T——F
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
Trade payables, other payables — ERE S~ it
and accruals JERTIE
RIEHER 8,499 6,553 - - - - 8,499 6,553
Other borrowings HiEs 2,401 2,401 - - - - 2,401 2,401
Finance lease payables BABERNTAE 161 161 28 161 - 28 189 350
Convertible loan notes ‘Hﬁﬂi%?ﬁ?}ﬁ - - - - - 740,964 - 740,964
11,061 9,115 28 161 - 740,992 11,089 750,268

ARRFIRE AT ARBBRMRETER R EH
RzEeBAEIHARLT

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

The Company b NN
On demand or
within 1 year 2 to 5 years Total
EERS—FR “ERf ECHY
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
“g--f —T-——-% Z=ZB-Z§f _"Z—% IZB-Zf _"T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FiEn FAEL FER FHT
Trade payables, other payables ENESH  Hit
and accruals ERFELIETER 2,267 2,426 - - 2,267 2,426
Other borrowings HEfiEE 1,523 1,523 - - 1,523 1,523
Convertible loan notes BREERER - - - 740,964 - 740,964
3,790 3,949 - 740,964 3,790 744913
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- HEH

Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISERAR MY RE

For the year ended 30 June 2012 HE-—E——F X XA=1HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. i EMEREEZERBE @
POLICIES (cont'd)
(e) Capital management

(e) EXERE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain sufficient capital in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares,
or sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies and processes during the years ended 30 June 2012 and
2011.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio, which is
calculated as borrowing over the amount of total assets. The Group's
strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at an appropriate level. The
gearing ratio as at 30 June 2012 was 0.5% (2011: 47%).

FEBERER T EBRDRIEREE
BERTAEASE  UHIBREZERLE - A
SFEEBRESRERREE -

AEEBEHEREE  WHELBERR
ZEREEEERBREBIELFHE - £
RIFAABRHLERERER - AEEHLEH
BIRATREZKRE - MRFEBER -
BITHRO I EEEUREREY - B2
ECHFRIE——FRAZ=ZTHILESF
E - HBEZ BEREEFILEEE -

FEENEERBLX(BERINEER
BE2B)EFEAR - ARBZBEREE
REAFBHEERE/RNEBKT RZT—=
FRA=ZTH BEBEELXR05%(Z
T——5F 1 47%) -

40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 27 September 2012.

40. #t R B &
MBEREAER-_E-——FAA-tLRHES
BRI -
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AFPBERE

The following is a summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in the note below:

BARBEEEAEMSE

Year ended 30 June

BEXAZTHLEE

AT AAEERTIIMEMSEERR 2O TIEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—EB——F —T—F —T-TF TTHNF TT/\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHIT FHT T T
RESULTS E
Turnover S
From continuing operations B s R 25,439 28,410 23,698 37,681 5,694
From discontinued operations BRI EE - - 1,403 9,847 10,117
25,439 28,410 25,101 47,528 15,811
Loss before tax PRI AT E 1B (883,584) (52,050) (22,135) (31,023) (63,035)
Income tax expense FRiSHFA X (817) (1,297) (38) (2,319) -
Loss from continuing operations BB E B8 (884,401) (53,347) (22,173)  (33,342)  (63,035)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued RS
operations wmFL(EE) - - 10,840  (16,614) 7,939
Loss for the year REEEIE (884,401) (53,347) (11,333)  (49,956)  (55,096)
Attributable to: FE1h -
Owners of the Company KRBVEB A (884,556) (49,544) (10,032) (46,936) (55,096)
Non-controlling interests IR 155 (3,803) (1,301) (3,020) -
(884,401) (53,347) (11,333) (49,956) (55,096)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FERBEE 403,196 1,253,702 6,148 6,801 110,458
Current assets MENBE 72,380 87,347 87,870 104,456 40,279
Non-current liabilities FEREAE (24) (627,639) (9,912) (9,000) (1,822)
Current liabilities mENEE (25,001) (13,575) (18,318)  (38,723)  (44,763)
Net assets BEFE 450,551 699,835 65,788 63,534 104,152
Attributable to: FE1h -
Owners of the Company KAREEER A 453,717 703,156 67,153 66,553 104,152
Non-controlling interests e (3,166) (3,321) (1,365) (3,019) -
450,551 699,835 65,788 63,534 104,152




CHINA OUTDOOR MEDIA GROUP LIMITED
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Unit 1803, 18th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
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